
Global Ports Investments PLC Annual Report 2014



Polozio 
Enterprises 

Ltd3
APM Terminals

30.75%

30.75%

9%

9%

20.5%

Free-float 
(LSE listing)

TIHL

Ilibrinio 
Establishment 

Ltd3

Global Ports is the 
leading container 
terminal operator in 
Eastern Europe by 
container throughput1.
2014 marked the successful integration of NCC Group, 
which was acquired at the end of 2013. Global Ports’ 
focus in 2014 was on improving operational efficiency, 
maximising free cash flow and maintaining pricing 
discipline against the backdrop of a difficult  
market environment.

Introduction

Transportation Investments Holding Limited (TIHL) is one of the largest privately 
owned transportation groups in Russia, the wider CIS and the Baltic Region,  
with strategic interests in rail transportation and port operations. TIHL carries  
on business under the brand name N-Trans. Nikita Mishin, Konstantin Nikolaev  
and Andrey Filatov jointly control TIHL.

APM Terminals (a member of A.P. Moller-Maersk Group, a leading oil and 
transportation conglomerate) operates a global terminal network of 64 ports  
and 140 inland services facilities, giving the company a global presence in  
67 countries.

1. Source: Drewry, based on 2014 data.
2. As at 29 April 2015.
3. Former owners of NCC Group Limited.
4. Company estimates, based on ASOP data for 2014.
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Key Strengths

 No.1
Container terminal operator in Russia 
Approximately every second container in Russia is handled  
by Global Ports.4

 7
Marine container terminals in Russia and 
Finland, covering two major sea basins
Our strategically positioned network offers real added value for 
clients and the highest standards of safety across the Group.

 10 
Terminals including two inland facilities 
and oil products terminal in Estonia 

 2.7m 
TEU of marine container  
throughput in 2014
Our market leadership has been reinforced by the acquisition of 

 
of 2013.
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2013 2014

3.2
3.7

2010

60%

2009

51%

2011

63%

2013

66%

2012

64%

2014

70%

Adjusted EBITDA Margin

67%

2014 Revenue (USD)

562.4m

Operating Cash Flow (USD) 

335m
Reduction in Total Operating  
Cash Costs 

-18%

Growth in Adjusted  
EBITDA Margin

+556bp

2014 Adjusted EBITDA (USD)

375.9m

A year of  
focus on 
integration, 
efficiency and 
deleveraging 

About Us
Performance*

Focus on efficiency and NCC acquisition synergy 
extraction yielded results: 
• 
• 
•  

Successful commercial campaign for 2014 supported 
by the Group’s unparalleled network of container 
terminals resulted in: 
•  

Deleveraging and prudent financial policy are our  
key priorities: 
• 
•  

• 2.9x reduction in capital expenditures.

consolidation. From 1 January 2014 jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the 

accounting and presentation. 
 

 
for using the equity method of consolidation).

Net debt/Adjusted EBITDA  
2014 vs 2013

Adjusted EBITDA margin 
(Russian Ports segment) 
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Consolidated Financial and Operating Data

Global Ports Segment Data

Selected IFRS Financial Information, USD m

2014  
Reported

2013  
2013  

Reported

Revenue 562.4 589.1 (26.7) (4.5%) 332.2 

 
selling and marketing expenses (286.6) (347.6) 60.9 (17.5%) (182.6)

(7.7) 16.9 (24.5) (145.3%) 16.9 

278.6 266.0 12.6 4.7% 169.4

Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statements

2014  
Reported

2013  
2013  

Reported

1,913.6 724.7 61.0%

1,207.7 (141.5) (10.5%)

335.2 406.6 (71.4) (17.6%) 251.6 

23.6 70.0 (46.5) (66.4%) 62.8

Selected Non-IFRS Financial Information

2014  
Reported

2013  
2013  

Reported

186.5 228.1 (41.6) (18.2%) 134.4 

375.9 361.0 14.9 4.1% 197.8 

66.8% 61.3% – – 59.6%

3.2 3.7 – –

Russian Ports Segment
 

2014  
Reported

2013  

2,404 (146.5) (6%)

 
179 159 20 12%

23 24 (1) (4%)

114 108 5 5%

751.0 895 (144) (16%)

602.2 626.0 (23.8) (4%)

422.4 410.4 12.0 3%

70.1% 65.6%

Oil Products Terminal Segment
2014 2013

Oil products gross throughput (million tonnes) 6.9 9.7 (2.8) (29%)

116.5 202.4 (85.9) (42%)

70.0 115.7 (45.6) (39%)

46.5 86.7 (40.2) (46%)

39.9% 42.9%

Finnish Ports Segment
2014 2013

251 224 27 12%

24.1 23.6 0.5 2%

3.9 3.4 0.5 15%

16% 14%



 

Moscow

Ekaterinburg

Novosibirsk

St. Petersburg
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Baltic Basin 
55% of Russia’s 
container traffic

Black Sea Basin 
15% of Russia’s 
container traffic

fastest route for transportation 
of containers from Asia to the 

shorter transit time is a key 
advantage for customers 

By Rail

container terminals are  
located in proximity to key 

inbound and outbound 

base due to its economic 

transportation of containers  
to major Russian cities.

By Sea

About Us continued
Strong position

Strong presence 
in key basins  
of Russian 
container trade
From St. Petersburg to the Far East,  
our terminals give us a strong position 
in the Russian container market.

1. 
First Container  
Terminal (FCT) 

Location: 

Cargo handled: 

 

Container throughput capacity: 

Ownership: 

100% 

2. 
Petrolesport  
(PLP) 

Location: 

Cargo handled: 

 
bulk and general cargo

Container throughput capacity: 

Ownership: 

100% 

3. 
Vostochnaya 
Stevedoring  
Company (VSC)
Location: 

Cargo handled: 

 
bulk cargo (coal)

Container throughput capacity: 

Ownership: 

100% 

4. 
UST-LUGA  
Container  
Terminal (ULCT)
Location: 

Cargo handled: 

 

Container throughput capacity: 

Ownership: 

80% 

5. 
Moby Dik (MD) 
 

Location: 

Cargo handled: 

 
bulk and general cargo

Container throughput capacity: 

Ownership: 

75%

Terminal Overview

Cargo flow from  
the Americas
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Russia

China

Japan

Sea of Japan

Okhot

3

Russia

Gulf of Finland

Estonia

Finland

 

6
7

5 2
1

4
10

8
9

Far East Basin 
28% of Russia’s 
container traffic

6. 
Yanino (YLP) 
 

Location: 

Cargo handled: 

 

Container throughput capacity: 

Ownership: 

75%

7. 
Logistika  
Terminal (LT)  

Location: 

Cargo handled: 

 

Container throughput capacity: 

Ownership: 

100% 

8 & 9. 
MLT Kotka 
and MLT Helsinki 

Location: 

Cargo handled: 

 
bulk cargo

Container throughput capacity: 

Ownership: 

75%

10. 
Vopak EOS 
 

Location: 

Cargo handled: 

Oil products 

Storage capacity: 

Ownership: 

50%

Our partners:

Entity:
Partner:
Share: 50%

Entity:  

Partner:

Share: 25% in each

Entity:
Partner:
Share: 20%

Baltic Basin
The Group’s container 
terminals in the Baltic Sea
Basin offer direct access  
to the most populous
and economically developed 
regions of the European
part of Russia, including 
Moscow and St. Petersburg.

Far East Basin
The Group’s container 
terminal in the Far East  
Basin is in an ice-free  
harbour with deep-water 
access and a direct link to  
the Trans-Siberian Railway.

3.51 MTEU
Global Ports marine terminal 
capacity

55%
Share of Baltic Basin terminals in 
the overall container throughput 
of Russian terminals1 

0.65 MTEU
Global Ports marine terminal 
capacity

28%
Share of Far East Basin terminals 
in the overall container 
throughput of Russian terminals1

Our Container Terminals
From East and West

Cargo flow 
from the 
Americas
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2009

2014

1.84

4.16

0 1 2 3 4 5

34%

80%

0 20 40 60 80 100

2009

2014

About Us continued
Track record of successful navigation  
through economic cycles

January

2014 milestones

April May

completed yielding a 3.5% increase  
optimisation programme that resulted  
in a 24% decrease in headcount in 2014  
and a 39% drop in total cash costs. 

 

Stronger 
market 
position

Better value 
proposition  
for clients

More resilient 
client base

Operating  
to best 
international 
standards

2009 2014 

Global Ports has built a strong platform over 5 years... 

One of several  
market players

Clear market leader 
with unparalleled 
network of seven 
maritime container 
terminals

Initiated  
re-development  
of PLP from timber  
port to modern 
container terminal

Modern well- 
invested terminals 
with highest level  
of service

Client mix  
dominated  
by regional  
feeder lines

Around 80% of  
clients are blue-chip  
mainline operators 
with long-term 
contracts

Private company LSE listed company, 
co-controlled by APM 
Terminals and N-Trans, 
good levels of corporate 
governance and 
transparency

Global Ports marine container  
throughput capacity (MTEU)

Share of mainline operators in throughput
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June July onwards December
 –

revised down as a proactive response  
 

in light of the available capacity at the 

 –
 

held a strategy update meeting.

 –
 

which resulted in 5% headcount reduction  
in Russian Ports and contributed to 18% 

 
cost reduction in 2014.

Clear  
strategy

2015 

   ...able to respond to the challenges of 2015

 – Focus on containers

 – Emphasis on efficiency and cost control

 – Optimise CAPEX; supported by  
well-invested facilities 

 – Focus on FCF generation

Action plan  
in place

 – Maintain strong pricing in containers supported  
by an unparalleled terminal network

 – Further process optimisation and cost cutting 

 – Reduce CAPEX to c. USD 25–35m p.a.  
over the coming years

Prioritising 
deleverage

 – Net debt reduced by USD 141.5m during  
2014; net debt/EBITDA ratio reduced by  
0.5 to 3.2 times 

 – Prioritise deleveraging over dividends in  
the mid term
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Strategic Report
Our focus is on achieving the highest safety  
and governance standards, extracting maximum 
value from our core assets whilst providing high 
levels of service to our clients. 
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“ We said at the time that  
full integration would take a year 
to complete and it is pleasing  
to report that the process was 
completed ahead of schedule  
and without any disruption  
to the overall business.”

Chairman’s Statement
Tiemen Meester

Our successful integration 
of NCC has made  
Global Ports one of the 
most prominent players  
in the market
As an enlarged group, we were even better equipped to  
define for our clients the clear value of our proposition, with  
our unparalleled network of modern container terminals. 
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2013
Illustrative Combined

2014

186.5

228.1

-18.2%

2013
Illustrative Combined

2014

375.9361.0

+4%

 

since 2008 and as a founding shareholder  
 

to working with him closely in his new role  

2014 was undoubtedly a tough year for 
 
 

the Russian economy gathered pace over  
the year as the economy was hit by a fall  
in the oil price. 

 

negative during the course of the second half.

 

acquired at the end of 2013. We said at the 
time that full integration would take a year to 
complete and it is pleasing to report that the 
process was completed ahead of schedule and 
without any disruption to the overall business. 

enabling us to maintain our pricing against  

Total operating cash costs, USD mAdjusted EBITDA, USD m 
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Chairman’s Statement continued
Tiemen Meester

Our determination not to chase market share 
did however result in some loss of volumes 
and our gross container throughput was  
lower in 2014 as a result. 

Our planning assumptions for 2014 were 
predicated on a continuation of tough trading 

our capital expenditure and sought ways  
to improve our cost base through business 

and planned headcount reduction amongst 

served to drive an 18% reduction in overall 
operating cash costs. And so while Group 

carefully contained costs helped the Group  

 
 
 

Governance 

corporate performance and therefore a major 

 
such that they resonate with employees  
and stakeholders alike. 

strong governance model and ensure that  

 

experience across a number of areas that  
are highly relevant to the business and its 

supervising body that has the right mix  
of skills to contribute successfully to the 

 

Dividend 

quarter of 2015 and low visibility regarding 

deleveraging over dividend distribution. With 

following the payment of the interim dividend 
 

will be no further dividend payments in the 

importance of appropriate shareholder 

remuneration and has a strong track record  
in this regard. We will of course continue  
to monitor the container market for recovery 
as well as for levels of volatility in order  
to identify the appropriate timing for a 

whilst remaining consistent in maintaining 
conservative leverage ratios.

Our People
2014 has not been an easy period for our 

about by the current trading conditions.  

while never losing their focus on delivering  
a top quality service to our customers.  

exemplary commitment to the Group and  
 

and hard work over the course of 2014. 

Prospects

environment we are experiencing will continue 

will remain focused on improving operational 

 
 

of additional measures to increase our 

 
in 2015.

 
Global Ports is currently in a far stronger 
position than during the last period of major 

well for the future even in these challenging 

 
it has an unmatched network of modern 

its management team is one of the best in the 
sector with a great track record of managing 

the Group can draw on the expertise  

 
the container industry in Russia and fully 

Tiemen Meester  
 

29 April 2015
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Q:
Why was there a change  
of chairman? 

A:
 

 
a 37.5%1

agreed that one of the best ways to  
extract real value from this structure was  

ensures that the extensive expertise of 
both companies will have a direct bearing 
on the development of Global Ports going 

 

 
at the end of 2014 and to be able to bring my 
skill in international port development and 

which not only means that he continues  
to be fully involved and able to support  

Q:
When do you plan to resume 
dividend payments?

A:
importance that dividends play for many 

 
we also have a duty to make sure that  
we manage the business in a responsible 

growth for shareholders. 

Russian economy has been hit hard and 
container volumes have fallen sharply  

this point to prioritise debt reduction over 
distributions to shareholders. 

We will of course continue to monitor the 
situation closely so that when the market 

 
the dividend while taking into account  
the need to maintain a strong balance 
sheet with conservative gearing. 

Q:
What are APMT’s and N-Trans’ 
long-term views on Global Ports  
and Russia?

A:

importantly they share the same positive 

 

companies view their investment in  
Global Ports in this context. What is clear 
is that there remains a fundamental need 
for modern port infrastructure in Russia 
and the country lags well behind other 
modern industrialised economies in the 
use of containers to ship goods. 

 

analyse the potential for containerisation in 

potential for Russia and its economy and  
as a positive endorsement for the future  
of the container market. 

Q+A with  
Tiemen Meester, Chairman
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
Dr. Alexander Nazarchuk

The group reinforced  
its leadership position  
in the region
Global Ports’ strategy to significantly reduce CAPEX, 
make further efficiency improvements and cut costs, 
whilst articulating our service offering to our clients 
was the right one to take. 

We started 2014 in a strong position following 

as the number one terminal operator in 

fragile state of the economy required that  

concerns about the outlook and the likelihood 
that conditions would worsen. We therefore 

while articulating our service offering to our 

prepared as we could be to deal with the 

given the circumstances and the fact that  
no one anticipated just how quickly the 

Russian Container Market

Russian container market was relatively 
 

with the market registering only a slight 

the economic situation deteriorated and the 

resulting in a 20% jump in laden exports.

Integration of NCC

the detailed preparation we conducted ahead 

that we were able to complete the integration 
of the two companies rapidly with no disruption 
to the overall business. As a result of the 

we delivered a 5% reduction in operating staff 
numbers and achieved other notable savings 

deliver an 18% decrease in dollar terms in  
the operating cash costs. 

Operational Review
 

unfortunately not enough to offset the 11% 

successful pricing strategy is formulated on 

some loss of volume to low cost competition 
but this was something we had anticipated 
and had prepared for in advance. Our 
unparalleled terminal network and our 
customer service standards have made  

customers and we were able to harness  
 

 “Our unparalleled 
terminal network and 
our customer service 
standards have made 
us the operator of 
choice for blue-chip 
customers and we 
were able to harness 
this position in 2014, 
resulting in a healthy  
3.5% growth in revenue 
per TEU.”
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Q:
Do you think that Global Ports’  
high EBITDA margin is sustainable 
going forward? 

A:
 

is a great achievement. Our 67% margin in 

 

 

variables which make margin predictions 

challenging to do as there are a lot of 
factors over which we have no control.  

 
but there are also things like the overall 

 

can deliver results in other areas – better 

and making sure we understand our 
 

class service.

Q:
Do you think the significant 
reduction in CAPEX could impact 
the safety of your operations? 

A:
 

to undermine our fundamental commitment 

maintenance and improvements which help 
ensure a safe working environment. We have 
consistently invested large sums over the last 
decade to upgrade and modernise our asset 
base. And as a result we operate some of  

 
in the region. 

taken after conducting a very thorough and 

the right amount in our facilities whilst at the 
same time maintaining our total commitment 
to ensuring a safe working environment.

Q:
What have you changed  
at VEOS during 2014?

A:
environment but it nonetheless remains  

 

development by changing the operating 
mode of this business to focus more on 
storage and the accumulation of large 

asset base which consists of 78 tanks  

successfully cutting cash costs in the 

Q+A with  
Dr. Alexander Nazarchuk,  
Chief Executive Officer
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 “Strong cash generation  
is a key attribute  
of our company and  
we delivered another 
excellent outcome, 
generating cash flow  
of USD 335 million  
from Group operating 
activities.”

Financial Performance
Group revenues decreased by 4.5% as  
the lower volumes impacted our revenues. 

 

margin improvement stemmed from the 

 
of our company and we delivered another 

 

capex plan envisaged an annual spend for 

 

We maintained our commitment to reduce  
 

3.2x. While the business generates strong 

container volumes and the poor visibility on 
the outlook for the container market means 
that the company is prioritising deleveraging 

recommendation to suspend dividend 
 

in his section of this annual report. 

Outlook 
 

and the strategic progress that the Group  
has made in recent years means it is uniquely 

opportunities in the container industry. 

continue to lag well behind that of other large 
and emerging economies and there remains 
plenty of scope for Russia to narrow the gap. 

is often viewed as the harbinger of the broader 

volatility remains high and market visibility  
low meaning conditions will remain tough.

continue to look for ways to drive greater 

additional measures to reduce operating 

deleveraging so that we are able to best  
meet the challenges that lie ahead. 

Dr. Alexander Nazarchuk
 

29 April 2015

Chief Executive Officer’s Statement continued
Dr. Alexander Nazarchuk

70%
The impressive level at which the  
Russian Ports segment’s Adjusted  
EBITDA margin held steady.
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Baltic
Basin

Northern 
ports

South
Basin

Far
East

Total

2.81

0.12
0.75

1.44

5.11

2.9

0.13
0.75

1.4

5.18

-3%

-11%
0%

3%

-1%

2013 2014

1Q14 2Q14 3Q14 4Q14

3%

1%

-2%

-6%

2013 2014

0.92

0.76

20%

Baltic Basin
Northern ports
South Basin
Far East

15%

28%

2%

55%

1 driven by economic 

the Russian container market contracted by 
1% in 2014.1

the second half of the year as a result of the 

depreciation of the Russian ruble and fragile 

import volumes into Russia in the second half 
of 2014 which in turn impacted the container 
market. After 3%1  
of 2014 and 1%1

market then declined by 2% and 6% in the 

container throughput of terminal in Russia 
1 in 2014 compared to 5.18m 

1 in 2013. 

to Russia (comprising 55%1

total container market in 2014) suffered from 
a combination of the decline in industrial and 
automotive production and falling consumption. 
As a result the pace of decline in the basin 
was higher than that of the overall market 

1

largest basin by container throughput with 
28%1 of total containers handled by Russian 
ports in 2014) where Global Ports operates 

the fact that the depreciation of the Russian 

railway tariffs lower on the stretch between 

the throughput of Russian container terminals 
1 

1

just 15%1 of Russian container market) was 
1

2014 was also the year of the advent of 
sanctions on Russia and the repercussions  

the food ban on Russian container market 
 

of Russian container volumes were affected. 

the banned cargo was gradually substituted 

which actually resulted in containerisation of 

1  
 

of the Russian ruble clearly had a positive 

there was an acceleration of what is already  

capacity added in 2014 and overall capacity 
remained at a healthy level of around 70%2. 

 

 
that the containerisation of Russian trade  
will continue. 

Market Review

Russian 2014 container market by basins, %1 

Russian container market throughput  
by basins, mln TEU1

Russian container market YoY change, %1 

Russian container 
market tracks macro-
economic trends in 2014
Despite the challenging environment, containerisation  
of the Russian container market continues, demonstrating  
the long-term potential for further containerisation.

2014 Laden export container throughput, 
mln TEU1 
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Business Review
Global Ports Group

Solid performance  
in a tough market
Focus on efficiency, cash flow and strong pricing was  
the right strategy to face the challenging conditions of 2014.

especially during the second half of the year. 

 

 

 
to 3.2* times as of the end of the year. 

Key Highlights for the Twelve-month 
Period Ended 31 December 2014

 – Gross marine container throughput rose 

 – Group revenues increased 69%* to  

 –  

Global Ports results on a comparable basis 

 
 

are accounted for using the equity method  
of consolidation) 

 – A successful commercial campaign  

unparalleled network of container 
terminals yielded a 3.5%* increase in 

 –

2013) as sustained container throughput  
 
 

 

 

 –
 

to lower throughput in both container  
and bulk cargo which was partially offset 

 –

with the devaluation of the Russian ruble 

 

 –

of cost reductions and strong pricing  

 –

 –  
of the company was negatively impacted 

 

attributable to the owners of the company 

the ruble was subject to a strong 

 –
 

as a proactive response to changing 

 –
 

 
 

From 1 January 2014 the Group adopted 
IFRS 11, “Joint arrangements” which has 

accounting policies applied by the Group. 

in jointly controlled entities (VEOS, MLT,  
and CD Holding groups) were accounted  
for by using the proportionate method of 
consolidation. From 1 January 2014 jointly 
controlled entities are accounted for using  
the equity method of consolidation. 

report is extracted from the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Global Ports  
Group for the twelve-month period ended 
31 December 2014, prepared in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as adopted by the European  
Union (“IFRS”). This report also includes 

further information on the calculation of such 

and the section entitled “Non-IFRS Measures: 

Margin” below. Readers of this report should 
read the entire announcement together  
with the Global Ports Group Consolidated 
Financial Statements, and not just rely on  
the summary information set out below.

In this report, unless stated otherwise,  
Global Ports is using the Illustrative 
Combined Financial Metrics as a comparator 
against the actual results of operations for  
the twelve-month period ended 31 December 

actual (reported) results of operations for the 
twelve-month period ended 31 December 
2013 are presented in separate columns in 

The Illustrative Combined Financial Metrics 
represent information prepared based  
on estimates and assumptions deemed 
appropriate by the Group and are provided  
for illustrative purposes only. They do not 
purport to represent what the actual results  

would have been had the transaction 
occurred on 1 January 2013, nor are they 
necessarily indicative of the results or cash 
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2013
Illustrative Combined

2014

278.6
266.0

+5%

Combined Financial Metrics are based  
on a hypothetical situation and, therefore,  

 
of the Group. 

which is derived from the management 
accounts is marked in this report with  
an asterisk {*}.

Results of Operations of Global Ports 
for the Twelve-month Periods Ended  
31 December 2013 and 2014
Table 1 shows the principal components  
of the Global Ports consolidated income 
statement for 2014 compared throughout  

 
provide an enhanced understanding and  
a comparative basis of the underlying 

Financial Performance 
Revenue

 
As a result of the mandatory implementation 

revenue is driven by the changes in revenue 
of the Russian Ports segment. Revenue of 
the Russian Ports segment is discussed in 
greater detail below in the discussion of the 

Table 1 – Consolidated income statement for 2014

2014
Reported

 
2013

%

2013
Reported

Selected consolidated  

Revenue 562.4 589.1* (26.7)* (4.5%)* 332.2

(231.5) (285.3)* 53.8* (18.9%)* (137.0)

 
and marketing expenses (55.2) (62.3)* 7.1* (11.4%)* (45.6)

 
of joint ventures (7.7) 16.9* (24.5)* (145.3%)* 16.9

10.5 7.6* 3.0* 39.1%* 2.8

278.6 266.0* 12.6* 4.7%* 169.4

Finance costs – net (507.7) (19.9)

(229.1) 149.5

31.8 (35.4)

(197.3) 114.1

 
(193.1) 114.1

 
 

during the period (0.34) 0.24

Key non-IFRS  

(186.5)* (228.1)* 41.6* (18.2%)* (134.4)*

375.9* 361.0* 14.9* 4.1%* 197.8*

66.8%* 61.3%* 59.6%*

 “Initiatives that were implemented by management in 
2014, combined with positive FX effect, have delivered  
an 18% reduction in cash costs year-on-year achieved 
through improving efficiency of operations and cost 
cutting measures.”

Operating Profit, USD m 
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2013
Illustrative Combined

2014

186.5

228.1

-16%

Business Review continued
Global Ports Group continued

Cost of sales
 

 

 
 

of sales is driven by the changes in the  
cost of sales of the Russian Ports segment. 

 
is discussed in greater detail below in the 

 

Administrative, selling and  
marketing expenses

 
in 2014. 

Share of profit/(loss) of joint ventures 
accounted for using the equity method
Table 2 shows the principal components  

ventures accounted for using the equity 
method for 2014 compared to 2013  

accounted for using the equity method 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Other gains/(losses) – net

 

payable and receivable.

Operating profit
 

in 2014 due to the factors discussed above.

Finance costs – net

 
 

by the end of 2014. 

Profit before income tax
 

discussed previously.

Income tax expense

 
which was mainly driven by losses carried 

 

Table 2 – Share of profit/(loss) of joint ventures

2014
Reported

 
2013

%

8.8 29.6* (20.8)* (70.3%)*

7.3 3.8* 3.5* 92.9%*

(23.7) (16.5)* (7.2)* 44.0%*

(7.7) 16.9* (24.5)* (145.3%)*

Total Operating Cash Costs, USD m 
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2013
Illustrative Combined

2014

23.6

70.0

-66%

2013
Illustrative Combined

2014

1,207.7
1,349.2 -10%

Loss attributable to the owners  
of the Company

due to the reasons discussed above. 

Basic and diluted earnings per share  
for profit attributable to the equity 
owners of the Company 

 
 

 

Non-IFRS Measures: Adjusted  
EBITDA And Adjusted EBITDA Margin
Table 3 shows the adjustments made to Global 

1 for 2013 and 2014. 

1 in 2014 
 

amortisation of intangible assets and 

increased to 66.8%* in 2014 compared to 

basis) due to the factors discussed previously.

Table 3 – Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA1 margin

2014
Reported

 
2013

%

2013
Reported

Revenue 562.4 589.1* (26.7)* (4.5%)* 332.2

 

(132.5)* (167.4)* 34.9* (20.8%)* (89.5)*

marketing expenses (excl. 

of intangible assets and 
(53.9)* (60.7)* 6.8* (11.2%)* (45.0)*

375.9* 361.0* 14.9* 4.1%* 197.8*

Liquidity and Capital Resources

 
in connection with the capital investment 
programmes of each of its operating 
segments as well as their operating costs.  

 
by revenues generated from operating 
activities as well as through borrowings.

As a result of the shareholding or joint 

generated from the operating activities of the 
entities constituting the respective business 
is not freely available to fund other operations 
and capital expenditures of Global Ports 
Group or any other businesses within Global 
Ports Group and can only be lent to an entity 
or distributed as a dividend with the consent 
of the other shareholders who are parties to 

 
is dependent on the cash generated by it  

 
 

and capital requirements. 

Cash CAPEX, USD m 

 “We are pleased to have achieved all of the planned 
synergies between the complementary operations.”

Net Debt, USD m 
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Capital Expenditures
 

on a cash basis in 2014 and 2013 (on the 

 

purchase and replacement of equipment.

Cash Flows for 2014 and 2013
Table 4 shows the principal components  

statement for 2014 and 2013.

Net cash from operating activities

dividends received from joint ventures  
and adjusted for income tax decreased by  

 
 

 
was primarily due to cash generated from 

 

 
 

elevated level of dividends during the  

dividend payment made by Global Ports  

 
joint ventures.

Net cash used in investing activities

 

 
 

subsidiaries – net of cash acquired reported 
in 2013 as a cash part of the consideration 

 
of the consideration for the transaction  

 
certain conditions related to the conversion  

Business Review continued
Global Ports Group continued

 “As an enlarged group, the 
benefits of our unparalleled 
network and logistics 
capability enabled Global 
Ports to achieve a 3.5% 
increase in revenue per 
TEU, no mean feat in the 
current environment. 
Despite the tough market 
conditions, containerisation 
in Russia continues to 
increase, as evidenced by 
the growth in laden exports, 
and we remain convinced 
of the long-term potential  
of the Russian market.”

Table 4 – Consolidated cash flow statement

 
2014

Reported

 
2013

 
2013 

Reported
%

388.4 393.7* (5.3)* (1.4%)* 218.8

(62.7) (57.4)* (5.3)* 9.3%* (37.5)

before dividends received from 
joint ventures and adjusted for 
income tax 325.7 336.3* (10.6)* (3.2%)* 181.3

 
joint ventures 9.5 70.3* (60.8)* (86.4%)* 70.3

 
operating activities 335.2 406.6* (71.4)* (17.6%)* 251.6

Net cash used in  
investing activities (93.3) (281.4)* 188.0* (66.8%)* (256.6)

Purchases of intangible assets (0.2) (0.1)* (0.1)* 74.4%* (0.1)

 
plant and equipment (23.6) (70.0)* 46.5* (66.4%)* (62.8)

(12.5) (37.6)* 25.1* (66.8%)* (19.6)

 
from related parties 0.5 1.3* (0.8)* (62.5%)* 1.3

(61.6) – (61.6)* –

Acquisitions of subsidiaries  
– net of cash acquired – (177.6)* 177.6* (177.6)

Other 4.0 2.6* 1.5* 53.8%* 2.2

Net cash used in  
(233.6) (79.7)* (153.9)* 192.9%* 43.5

Proceeds from the issue of shares 
12.8 – 12.8* –

(105.8) 168.6* (274.4)* (162.8%)* 210.3

(92.2) (93.0)* 0.8* (0.9%)* (15.0)

 
(48.5) (153.9)* 105.4* (68.5%)* (150.4)

 
to issued shares – (1.5)* – – (1.5)
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1st half 
2015

2nd half 
2015

2016 2017 2018 
and later

804

197.1175.452.657.4

2013
Illustrative Combined

2014

3.2

3.7

Debt Maturity Profile, USD m 

Net Debt/Adjusted EBITDA 

 
into equity.

Net cash used in financing activities

 

 
 

 
from the issue of shares by a subsidiary  

 

Capital Resources

lease liabilities in an aggregate principal 

 
 

from the end of 2013 was mainly driven by  
repayment of borrowings as well as by 

2

Results of Operations for the  
Global Ports Group’s Segments  
for 2014 and 2013
Table 5 
operational information for 2014 and 2013.3

Table 5 – Global Ports Group’s key operational information

 
2014 2013

 

Abs %

Gross throughput
Russian Ports segment
Containerised cargo (thousand TEUs)

658* 711* (54)* (7.5%)*

475* 475* 0* 0.0%*

228* 219* 8* 3.8%*

941* (143)* (13.2%)*

104* 62* 42* 68.1%*

2,404* (147)* (5.7%)*

Non-containerised cargo
23* 24* (1)* (4.3%)*

114* 108* 5* 5.0%*

Other bulk cargo (thousand tonnes) 751* 895* (144)* (16.1%)*

Yanino (inland container terminal)

89* 63* 26* 40.6%*

319* 304* 15* 5.0%*

Logistika Terminal (inland container terminal)

89* 95* (6)* (6.2%)*

285* 240* 45* 18.9%*

 
179* 159* 20* 12.5%*

605* 544* 61* 11.1%*

Finnish Ports segment
251* 224* 27* 12.2%*

Oil Products Terminal segment
6.9* 9.7* (2.8)* (29.0%)*



Eduard 
Chovushyan
Managing Director 
of Petrolesport

Victoria 
Scherbakova-
Slusarenko
General Manager  
of Yanino & LT

Andrey 
Bogdanov
General Manager of  
Ust-Luga Container 
Terminal

Alexander 
Tikhov
Managing Director  
of First Container 
Terminal

Vitaly Mishin
General Manager  
of Moby Dik

Alexander 
Dudko
Managing Director  
of VSC
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Business Review continued
Russian Ports segment

Results of Operations
The Russian Ports segment consists of  

(100%), VSC (100%), FCT (100%), ULCT 
(80%) (in which Eurogate currently has a  
20% effective ownership interest), Moby Dik 
(75%), Yanino (75%) (Container Finance 
currently has a 25% effective ownership 
interest in each of Moby Dik and Yanino),  
and Logistika Terminal (100%). 

The results of Moby Dik and Yanino are 

Unaudited Selected Illustrative Combined 
Financial Metrics for 2013 using an equity 
method of accounting, but are included in  

basis consistent with segmental reporting. 

Operational Performance

declined 1.3%*1 in 2014 with growth of 1.6%*1 

1 during the 

the Russian Federation Ports in 2014 stood  
1. Overall industry capacity 

utilisation levels remained at a healthy level  
of approximately 70%*2 during the period. 

 
at Russian container terminals increased 
20.4%*3

growth in laden export was driven by the 
ongoing containerisation in Russia underpinned 
by the depreciation of the Russian ruble against 

export from Russia.

Table 6 – Russian Ports segment’s Revenue for 2014 and 2013
 

2014 2013
%

Revenue 602.2 626.0* (23.8)* (3.8%)*

508.8* 521.7* (13.0)* (2.5%)*

Other 93.4* 104.3* (10.8)* (10.4%)*

 
 

was 3%*3  
3 and  

 

Gross container throughput in the  
Russian Ports segment of the Group 

 
 

 

driven by decreasing volumes in the  
 

to low cost competitors driven by the  
 

the Group.

compared to 2013 to 114 thousand* cars  
due to an increase of car throughput by the 

thousand* units in the reporting period 
compared to 24 thousand units* in 2013. 

 
inland terminals increased 12.5%* and 11.1%* 
respectively in 2014 compared to 2013 to 179 

driven by ongoing containerisation in Russia and 
by growth in the exports the mentioned above. 

declined by 144 thousand tonnes* or 16.1%* 
to 751 thousand tonnes* in 2014 from 895 

Financial Performance
Revenue

revenue in 2014 and 83.3%* in 2013 (on the 

Ports segment also generates revenue from 

and ancillary services. Revenue from these 
activities accounted for 15.5%* and 16.7%* of 

 
 

 

 
 

 

decrease in revenue from container handling 
was primarily due to the lower container 
throughput in the Russian Ports segment 
which was partially offset by a 3.5%* increase 

 

Biographies of the Terminal Directors can be found on pages 38 and 39.
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Table 8 – Cost of sales, administrative, selling and marketing  
expenses for the Russian Ports segment for 2013 and 2014

2014
% of total

2014
Reported

2013
2013

Reported 
%

 
and equipment 27% 82.9 95.2 (12.2) (12.9%) 51.8

Amortisation of 
intangible assets 8% 24.6 29.8 (5.1) (17.3%) 6.1

plant and equipment 6% 18.0 4.2 13.8 325.4% 0.0

28% 84.2 98.2 (14.0) (14.2%) 58.6

expenses 4% 12.7 14.7 (2.0) (13.9%) 14.7

 
and gas 5% 14.5 17.2 (2.7) (15.5%) 9.6

Repair and 
maintenance of 

 
and equipment 5% 14.9 16.9 (2.0) (11.8%) 11.8

Other operating 
expenses 18% 53.5 68.6 (15.1) (22.0%) 34.8

 
selling and  
marketing expenses 100% 305.3 344.7 (39.4) (11.4%) 187.4

selling and marketing 
expenses (operating 
cash costs of  
Russian Ports) 59% 179.8 215.6 (35.8) (16.6%) 129.5

Other revenue in 2014 compared to 2013 
decreased primarily due to decreased 

other bulk cargo handling which was partially 
offset by growth in revenue from cars and 

Table 6 shows the components of the 
 

Table 7
revenue from cargo handling and storage 

container throughput and the revenue per 

 

increases in tariffs as well as by other factors. 

Cost of sales, administrative,  
selling and marketing expenses
Table 8  

and marketing expenses for the Russian 
Ports segment for 2013 and 2014.

 

operating cash costs was driven by a 14.2%* 

11.8%*decrease in repair and maintenance of 

a 13.9%* decrease in transportation costs  

well as a 22.0%* decrease other operating in 

improvements and strong cost control. 

Adjusted EBITDA  
(non-IFRS financial measure) 

 
 

 
Russian Ports segment increased by 458 

Table 7 – Revenue from cargo handling and storage  
for the Russian Ports segment for 2013 and 2014

2014 2013
(Abs) %

508.8* 521.7* (13.0)* (2.5%)*

throughput 2,404* (146.5)* (5.7%)*

212* 205* 7.1* 3.5%*
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Business Review continued
Oil Products Terminal segment

Results of Operations
The Oil Products Terminal segment consists 

 
interest in Vopak E.O.S (in which Royal  
Vopak currently has a 50% effective 
ownership interest). 

The results of the Oil Products Terminal 

well as in the Unaudited Selected Illustrative 
Combined Financial Metrics for 2013 using an 
equity method of accounting, but are included 

100% basis. 

Table 9 shows the results of operations for the  

Financial Performance 
Revenue

decrease in throughput at the terminal due  

owners preferred to handle more product 
within Russia and (ii) an increased share  

 

 
as well as the blending and accumulating  
of large shipments. 

Cost of sales, administrative,  
selling and marketing expenses
Table 10  

and marketing expenses for the Oil Products 

 
 

and marketing expenses decreased by  
 

decrease in transportation expenses and 

electricity and gas expenses as a result  
of a drop in rail delivered cargo volumes. 

course of changing business model. 

Operating cash costs of the Oil Products 
 

 
 

the factors described above. 

Adjusted EBITDA  
(non-IFRS financial measure)

 
 

 

described above.

 
from 42.9%* in 2013 to 39.9%* in 2014  
due to the factors described above. 

Table 9 – Results of operations for the Oil Products Terminal segment for 2013 and 2014
 

2014
Reported

2013
Reported  

%

116.5 202.4 (85.9)* (42.4%)*

70.0* 115.7* (45.6)* (39.5%)*

46.5* 86.7* (40.2)* (46.4%)*

39.9%* 42.9%*

Table 10 – Cost of sales, administrative, selling and marketing expenses  
for the Oil Products Terminal segment for 2013 and 2014

2014
% of total

 
2014

Reported
2013

Reported  
%

 
plant and equipment 26% 25.6 23.7 1.9* 8.0%*

Amortisation of intangible assets 1% 1.3 2.5 (1.2)* (48.5%)*

21% 20.6 25.2 (4.6)* (18.2%)*

24% 22.9 46.8 (23.9)* (51.1%)*

16% 15.8 28.7 (12.8)* (44.7%)*

Repair and maintenance of 
3% 3.1 4.5 (1.4)* (30.9%)*

Other operating expenses 8% 7.6 10.5 (2.9)* (27.8%)*

selling and marketing expenses 100% 96.9 141.9 (44.9)* (31.7%)*

 
and marketing expenses  
(operating cash costs of oil 
products terminal segment) 73% 70.0* 115.7* (45.6)* (39.5%)*

Arnout Dirk 
Lugtmeijer
General Manager  
of Vopak EOS

 “During 2014 we successfully addressed the challenging 
environment by implementing a new business model at 
VEOS which is focused more on storage. This utilises 
VEOS’s unparalleled features of our large the tank farm 
consisting of many reservoirs of different sizes.”
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Finnish Ports segment

Results of Operations
The Finnish Ports segment consists of the 

 
in MLT Kotka and MLT Helsinki (in each  
of which Container Finance currently has  
a 25% effective ownership interest). 

The results of the Finnish Ports segment are 

 
the Unaudited Selected Illustrative Combined 
Financial Metrics for 2013 using an equity 
method of accounting, but are included  

 
a 100% basis. 

Operational Performance 
 

Finnish Ports segment increased by 12.2%* 
 

 

Financial Performance 
Revenue

increase was primarily due to increased 
container throughput in the segment.

Table 11 – Cost of sales, administrative, selling and marketing expenses  
for the Finnish Ports segment for the first half 2013 and 2014

2014
% of total

2014
Reported

2013
Reported  

%

 
plant and equipment 12% 2.8 2.6 0.2* 9.4%*

37% 8.5 8.4 0.1* 1.1%*

16% 3.6 3.2 0.5* 15.2%*

4% 1.0 1.0 0.0* 2.9%*

Repair and maintenance of 
7% 1.6 1.3 0.4* 27.1%*

Other operating expenses 24% 5.5 6.5 (1.0)* (14.9)%*

selling and marketing expenses 100% 23.1 22.9 0.2* 1.0%*

marketing expenses (operating 
cash costs of Finnish Ports) 88% 20.3* 20.3* 0.0* (0.1)%*

 “The Finnish port segment 
performed particularly well 
over the year with a 12% 
increase in volumes, which 
almost directly translated 
into a 15% upswing in 
EBITDA during 2014.”

Cost of sales, administrative,  
selling and marketing expenses
Table 11  

and marketing expenses for the Finnish Ports 

 

Adjusted EBITDA  
(non-IFRS financial measure) 

2014 due to the factors described above.

Ports segment increased from 14.3%* in  
2013 to 15.8%* in 2014 due to the factors 
described above.

Dirk van 
Assendelft
General Manager  
of Multi-Link 
Terminals
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Corporate Responsibility

Global Ports plays a 
significant role in the 
development of the regions  
in which it operates 
The group is equally committed to working safely  
and helping the environment.

All the companies of Global Ports Group 
adhere to the principle of corporate social 

interests of all stakeholders including their 
 

and communities. Programmes are being 
implemented in every region in which the 

and economic development of these regions.

with all our stakeholders to be an important 
part of our dynamic development in the 
international business community and our 
contribution to sustainable social development. 
We recognise that community issues are key 
issues for our business both now and in  

independently of them.

We encourage all parts of our business to take 

donations and community investments.

Health and Safety
 

and an ongoing challenge for the Group. 

Global Ports continues to work on installing  
a safety culture in all aspects of our company. 

the safety of our operations were undertaken.

Safety design reviews
 

out in respect of terminal design with the  
goal to make the terminal designs safer.  

together with terminal design specialists  

terminal management implemented several 
improvements to the terminal layouts 
reducing risks in these locations.

Global Ports minimum safety 
requirements and Global Ports  
safety manual

based on a thorough risk assessment  

 –

 –

 –

 –

All the companies of the Group adhere to 

 
 

these principles includes special tools  

 – Regular monitoring of Occupational  

 –
and regular reviews of employee health  

 – Preventative medical action to reduce the 

 – Regular workplace reviews for compliance 

 –  

 –

requirements and promote stronger 
labour discipline. 
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Environment
A responsible attitude towards the environment 
is one of the key components of our corporate 
social responsibility approach and an important 

with all applicable requirements of environmental 
law in the regions where we operate.

Responsibility towards the environment  

which help to protect the environment are 
mainly represented by the construction of 

locations and the modernisation of currently 
operational cleaning equipment.

Charity and Local Community 
Sponsorship

 
in the social sphere is based on strategic 
programmes in areas such as employment 

socially or physically vulnerable people.

the development of social infrastructure and 
cooperate with the local authorities and social 
institutions of their regions.

Global Ports is committed to charitable 

 –

 –  

medical treatment of children with  

 –

maintain and support local sport and cultural 

 –
and an orphanage house for orphans with 

 –

 –

continued to support a disabled local 

 –

 –
rehabilitation centre for disabled people  

People

we consider our employees to be one of the 

create the conditions to stimulate and realise the 
creative potential of its employees and shape 

personal initiative and responsibility.

employee development and professional 

fundamental principles to look after their 

 – Providing adequate wage levels and  
social environment for our employees  
(i.e. sponsorships of various celebration 

 – Offering improved procedures for 

development through professional training 

 –

 – Offering health improvement programmes 

preventive treatment for those employees 

 –
 

for its retirees.

 “In 2014 we focused on managing the efficiency  
of our network following the growth of Global Ports’ 
portfolio with the acquisition of NCC. Working in close 
collaboration with terminal management, we evaluated 
productivity, cost and capacity utilisation at selected 
terminals to achieve optimisation and cost leadership  
at business unit level and across the enlarged Group.  
We will continue to focus on improving efficiency in 2015 
whilst always maintaining the highest safety standards.”
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Governance
Effective governance is central to Global Ports’ 
long-term success. The Group has assembled  
a skilled, diverse board of directors to help  
deliver high standards.
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Governance

Good governance  
is a cornerstone  
of any successful and 
sustainable company 
The fact that Global Ports is the largest container terminal 
operator in Russia at a time of renewed pressure on the  
regional economy in my opinion only serves to heighten  
the importance of good governance. 

 

strive to improve our governance framework 
in order to protect the interests of our 

 
and sustainable shareholder value.

pleased to report that the integration of  
the two businesses proceeded smoothly  
and we successfully introduced Global  

processes and management systems across 

introducing common standards and systems 

One of the most important aspects of the role 

correct balance of skills and experience and 
that its members work together effectively. 

to evolve and in 2014 we welcomed two  
 

knowledge and experience of our industry. 

 
be both positive and constructive and it is  

directors enjoy a good working relationship 
with the executive management at Global 

commitment to openness and transparency. 

 
 

governance arrangements are appropriate  

Tiemen Meester 

 “Cooperation between the two 
co-controlling shareholders is 
excellent and we share a common 
commitment to ensuring that the 
governance system at Global 
Ports meets international best-
practice standards. 

As I take up my new position as 
Chairman of the Board, I want to 
emphasise how important it is that 
we retain this strong governance 
culture and that I intend to make 
sure that this remains the case.”
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 “I believe that the progressive 
governance structure we have 
adopted at Global Ports has made 
a significant contribution to our 
Group. I will continue to provide 
my full support to the Chairman  
in my role as Vice Chairman, 
particularly when it comes to  
the issue of governance and our 
Board’s ongoing commitment  
to continuous improvement.”

 “As a Board, one of our main 
focuses is on how we manage  
the issue of risk. At Global Ports 
there is a good understanding of 
the importance of having a strong 
risk and control culture that covers 
both our risk assessment and 
management systems and our 
financial control systems.”

 
 

 “As senior non-executive  
director, I ensure that the 
Company’s obligations to its 
stakeholders, especially its  
staff and shareholders, are  
fully discharged and that as  
a Company we continue to  
uphold high standards of ethics.”

 
 

Alexander Dudko,

Managing Director of VSC

Dirk van Assendelft, 

General Manager of Multi-Link Terminals

Eduard Chovushyan,

Managing Director of PLP

Appointment of the 

members of Terminals’ 

Boards of Directors and 

General Managers

Coordination of Respective Activities and Policies

Remuneration Committee 

Nomination Committee

Audit and Risk Committee 

Internal Auditor

Terminals

 

 

 

 Vitaly Mishin, 

General Manager of Moby Dik

Arnout Dirk Lugtmeijer,  

General Manager of VEOS

Andrey Bogdanov,  

General Manager of ULCT

Victoria Scherbakova-Slusarenko,  

General Manager of Yanino & LT

Key Executive Management

 

 Alexander Tikhov,  
Managing Director of FCT

General Meeting of Shareholders

Board of Directors

 Dr. Alexander Nazarchuk, 

Chief Executive Officer

Evgeny Zaltsman, 

Head of Business Development

 

Mikhail Loganov, 

Chief Financial Officer

 
Egor Govorukhin, 

Chief Commercial Officer

Anders Kjeldsen, 

Chief Operating Officer

Global Ports governance structure
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Board of Directors

Our Board has a unique  
mix of skills and experience
Global Ports values talent, experience and diversity, which can be seen in our 
Directors. Between them, they possess a wide range of industry knowledge  
gained over many years working within Russia and around the globe.

1. Tiemen Meester
Chairman

 

 
 

 

2. Nikita Mishin
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

 

3. Siobhan Walker
Member of the Board of Directors, 
Independent Non-Executive Director

 

experience across multiple disciplines and 

 
 

 

4. Capt. Bryan Smith
Member of the Board of Directors, 
Independent Non-Executive Director

 

 

 

5. Dr. Alexander Nazarchuk
Member of the Board of Directors  
and Chief Executive Officer

held the positions of chairman of the council  

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

of four books and numerous articles.

6. Mikhail Loganov
Member of the Board of Directors  
and Chief Financial Officer

 

1 2 5 6 73 4
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2008 and as a member of its Audit and Risk and 

 

business administration acquired during a  
career primarily across the transportation  

 
and reporting activities of Globaltrans as well  

transactions in addition to other responsibilities. 
Prior to that he held other senior finance positions 

7. Kim Fejfer
Member of the Board of Directors

 
in June 2004 and is based in the company 

 
 

a number of roles within the company including 

 
 

8. Alexander Iodchin
Member of the Board of Directors

and the internal auditor of Global Ports in 2008.  
 

companies of the Group. 

9. Constantinos Economides
Member of the Board of Directors

 

 

 

 
an extensive experience in tax advisory as well as 

10. Michalakis Christofides
Member of the Board of Directors

 
 

 

 
he was responsible for the development and 

 

 
 

11. Vadim Kryukov
Member of the Board of Directors

experience in transportation and logistics and  
in the areas of financial planning and budgeting.  

 

development and support of several significant 

12. Laura Michael
Member of the Board of Directors

 

13. Konstantin Shirokov
Member of the Board of Directors

 
 

which positions he has held since 2005 and  

than ten years of experience in the areas of 

 
of the Russian Federation where he studied 

14. Chrystalla Stylianou
Member of the Board of Directors

Accountant currently working at Orangefield 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14
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Executive Management

We have the best operational 
team in place to succeed
From running terminals to handling cross-border transactions,  
the team is highly experienced in operating ports around the world.

1. Dr. Alexander Nazarchuk
Member of the Board of Directors,  
Chief Executive Officer

from April 2003 until June 2008 and as a senior 

author of four books and numerous articles.

2. Mikhail Loganov
Member of the Board of Directors, 
Chief Financial Officer

member of its Audit and Risk and Remuneration 

administration acquired during a career primarily 
across the transportation and logistics industry  

 

responsible for financial and reporting activities  

of Globaltrans as well as having oversight of  
 

to other responsibilities. Prior to that he held other 
senior finance positions within Globaltrans group.  

 

3. Evgeny Zaltsman
Head of Business Development

 

participated in a number of landmark domestic and 

industrials and in the transportation industry.

 
 

4. Egor Govorukhin
Chief Commercial Officer

 

managing positions in various logistics and freight 

 

economics and in 2006 successfully completed the 

 

5. Anders Kjeldsen
Chief Operational Officer 

group in 1991 and has during the last 24 years 
worked in most disciplines of the container terminal 
industry. Prior to his role of managing the Western 

 

terminal operations in most parts of the world.

1 2 3 4 5



37Global Ports Investments PLC Annual Report 2014

Financial StatementsGovernanceOverview Strategic Report Additional Information



1

38 Global Ports Investments PLC Annual Report 2014

Terminal Directors

Strong management  
delivers a solid 
performance
Our experienced team of Terminal Directors  
have an excellent track record.

1. Eduard Chovushyan
Managing Director of Petrolesport

 

experience in various managerial positions in the 

 

of Porttransservice OOO.

2. Alexander Tikhov
Managing Director  
of First Container Terminal

transportation and logistics industry in Russia.  

 

 

 

poort 2r 0144al RRRRepepReRRRReRRRRReepRReeeRReRRRRee

2 3 4
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3. Alexander Dudko
Managing Director of VSC

 

where he spent three years in various positions.  
 

 

 

 
 

4. Arnout Dirk Lugtmeijer
General Manager of Vopak EOS

 

 

 

 
and graduated in 1991.

5. Andrey Bogdanov
General Manager of  
Ust-Luga Container Terminal

 

2003. From 2000 to 2003 he held the position  

 
 

 

6. Vitaly Mishin
General Manager of Moby Dik

 
 

 
 

 

7. Dirk van Assendelft
General Manager of Multi-Link Terminals

 
 

 

 
Prior to his appointment as the managing director 

8. Victoria Scherbakova-
Slusarenko
General Manager of Yanino & LT

5 6 7 8
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Corporate Governance

international corporate governance standards and further improve corporate governance standards and to ensure that its corporate governance 
framework is in line with the interests of shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Role of the Board of Directors

successful performance of the Group.

 
 

Policies

policies and procedures. 

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 

report any suspected breaches.

 –

 –
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Members of the Board of Directors
 

 

 

 
on the same day.

discuss their activity and evaluate their performance.

 
 

 
in a position to exercise objective judgment on corporate affairs independently from management. 

 

backed authority. 

reserved matters.
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Directors’ Interests

39,731,086 ordinary shares 

15,488,390 ordinary  
non-voting shares

 

Board Performance

Board of Directors Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee Audit and Risk Committee

A B A B A B A B

7 7 – – – – – –

15 15 2 2 – – – –

15 15 2 2 6 6 – –

11 15 2 2 6 6 – –

15 15 – – – – – –

11 15 – – – – – –

15 15 – – – – 9 9

14 15 – – – – 9 9

14 15 2 2 5 6 8 9

15 15 2 2 6 6 9 9

13 15 – – – – – –

7 7 – – – – – –

14 15 – – – – – –

11 15 – – – – – –

8 8 – – – – – –

8 8 – – – – – –

Corporate Governance continued
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Board Committees

Audit and Risk Committee

 

 

 –  

 –  

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –
shareholders to reappoint the external auditor for the next year.

Internal Audit
 

 –

 –

 –

 –

 – Group companies conduct their business in compliance with applicable laws.

Nomination Committee
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Corporate Governance continued

Remuneration Committee

 
 

own remuneration.

 
of the Group.

Board and Management Remuneration

Investor Relations/Disclosures

 

 
and safety of information resources.

establishment of effective and transparent arrangements for securing the rights of shareholders.

 

opinions on key strategic matters when making important decisions.

External Auditors
 

of the Group.

 –

 –

 –
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Risk Management Process, Principal Risks and Uncertainties
 

implemented comprehensive risk control and management systems to prevent or mitigate potential adverse effects of changes in its operating 

 

 
of the effectiveness of systems that have been established for this purpose.

intended to be an indication of the probability of their occurrence or the magnitude of their potential effects. Additional risks that are not known  

Strategic Risks
 –

 

 –

 –  

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –  
 

or desirable.

Risk Management

Well-defined risk management principles are derived from experience, best practice and  
good governance. Identifying and mitigating risks that could prevent us from achieving our 
corporate goals will help us deliver long-term growth and added value to our shareholders.
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Operational Risks
 –

 –

 –  

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

Compliance and Shareholder Risks
 –

 –

 –

 –

Financial Risks
 –

 –

 –

 –

 –

General Business Risks
 –

 –

Risk Management continued
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Board of Directors and Other Officers

Board of Directors
 

(Mrs. Iana Boyd Penkova is the alternate to Mr. Tiemen Meester) 
Chairman of the Board of Directors since 16 December 2014 
Non-Executive Director 
Member of Remuneration and Nomination Committees

 
(Mr. Mikhail Loganov is the alternate to Mr. Nikita Mishin)  
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors since 16 December 2014 
Chairman of the Board of Directors until 16 December 2014 
Non-Executive Director 
Member of Remuneration and Nomination Committees

 
(Mrs. Iana Boyd Penkova and Mr. Christian Moller Laursen are the alternates to Mr. Kim Fejfer) 
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors until 16 December 2014 
Non-Executive Director 
Member of Remuneration, Nomination and Audit and Risk Committees

 
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director 
Chairman of Remuneration and Nomination Committees

 
Independent Non-Executive Director 
Chairman of Audit and Risk Committee

 
(Mr. Alexander Iodchin is the alternate to Dr. Alexander Nazarchuk) 
Executive Director 

 
Executive Director 
Member of Nomination Committee

 
Executive Director 

 
Non-Executive Director 
Member of Audit and Risk Committee

 
(Ms. Chrystalla Stylianou is the alternate to Ms. Laura Michael) 
Non-Executive Director
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Board of Directors and Other Officers continued

Board of Directors continued
 

Non-Executive Director

 
Non-executive Director

 
Non-Executive Director

 
Non-Executive Director

 
Executive Director

 
Non-Executive Director

Board support
 

Company Secretary
Team Nominees Limited
20 Omirou Street  

 
 

Cyprus

Registered office
20 Omirou Street  

 
 

Cyprus 
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Report of the Board of Directors

Principal Activities
 

Review of Developments, Position and Performance of the Group’s Business
 

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Future Developments of the Company 

Results

for 2014.

Dividends
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Report of the Board of Directors continued

Dividends continued

 

 

Share Capital
Authorised share capital

 
any general meeting.

The Role of the Board of Directors
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Members of the Board of Directors
 

 

 

 
on the same date.

 
 

Directors’ Interests

Name Type of holding
Shares held at

31 December 2014
Shares held at

31 December 2013

39,731,086 ordinary shares 39,731,086 ordinary shares 

15,488,390 ordinary  
non-voting shares

15,488,390 ordinary  
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Report of the Board of Directors continued

Board Performance 
 

Board of Directors Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee Audit and Risk Committee

A B A B A B A B

7 7 – – – – – –

15 15 2 2 – – – –

Bryan Smith 15 15 2 2 6 6 – –

11 15 2 2 6 6 – –

15 15 – – – – – –

11 15 – – – – – –

15 15 – – – – 9 9

14 15 – – – – 9 9

14 15 2 2 5 6 8 9

15 15 2 2 6 6 9 9

13 15 – – – – – –

7 7 – – – – – –

Chrystalla Stylianou 14 15 – – – – – –

11 15 – – – – – –

8 8 – – – – – –

8 8 – – – – – –
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The Board Committees

 

senior management of the Company.
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The Board Committees continued
 

 

 
of the Group.

Corporate Governance

 –
 –
 –
 –
 –
 –
 –
 –
 –

Board and Management Remuneration

 

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Branches

Report of the Board of Directors continued
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Treasury Shares

Going Concern

Auditors

By Order of the Board

Tiemen Meester

Limassol 
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

 

By Order of the Board

Mikhail Loganov    Alexander Iodchin

Limassol 
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Global Ports Investments Plc

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Board of Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Auditor’s responsibility
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Global Ports Investments Plc continued

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
Opinion 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
 

 –
 –
 –
 –  

 –

Other Matter

 
 
Tasos Nolas

 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2014

For the year ended  
31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) Note 2014
2013  

Restated*

5 562,382 332,244 

Cost of sales 6 (231,476) (136,979)

330,906 195,265 

 
6 (55,169) (45,595)

27 (7,653) 16,880 

Other gains/(losses) – net 7 10,539 2,801 

278,623 169,351 

 
9 1,276 4,350 

9 (90,481) (15,455)

9 (418,543) (8,766)

9 (507,748) (19,871)

 
(229,125) 149,480 

10 31,803 (35,413)

(197,322) 114,067 

 
Attributable to:

(193,140) 114,120 

(4,182) (53)

 (197,322) 114,067 

 
 

12 (0.34) 0.24
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2014

(in thousands of US dollars) Note

For the year ended
31 December

2014
2013 

Restated*

(197,322) 114,067 

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

(491,502) (42,349)

27 (52,213) 4,491 

(84,088) – 

(391) – 

(628,194) (37,858)

(628,194) (37,858)

(825,516) 76,209 

 
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 

(808,578) 76,441 

(16,938) (232)

(825,516) 76,209 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2014

(in thousands of US dollars) Note

As at 31 December As at 1 January

2014
2013 

Restated*
2013  

Restated*

ASSETS

1,780,039 3,024,855 1,012,039 

14 732,235 1,326,338 700,905

15 822,247 1,441,140 54,072

27 188,340 231,019 223,936

14 4,431 10,980 30,544

25 30,701 517 –

19 2,085 14,861 2,582 

Current assets 133,523 251,955 176,802 

18 4,996 7,583 4,406 

19 41,258 126,649 94,069 

8,461 3,515 392 

20 – 989 – 

21 78,808 113,219 77,935 

1,913,562 3,276,810 1,188,841 

 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

391,727 1,192,677 819,286 

366,316 1,208,030 816,774 

22 57,317 57,317 47,000 

Share premium 22 923,511 923,511 454,513 

101,300 101,300 101,300 

(686,761) (155,802) (118,123)

(84,479) – 

31 (209,122) (210,376) (210,376)

264,550 492,080 542,460 

25,411 (15,353) 2,512 

1,521,835 2,084,133 369,555 

1,376,266 1,679,272 276,656 

23 1,073,668 1,230,925 193,892 

24 102,840 26,069 – 

25 199,758 422,278 82,764 

145,569 404,861 92,899 

23 109,975 206,388 56,592 

26 24,675 197,011 34,854 

10,919 1,462 1,453 

1,913,562 3,276,810 1,188,841 

Alexander Iodchin     Mikhail Loganov 
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Attributable to the owners of the Company

(in thousands of US dollars) Note
Share 

capital
Share 

premium
Capital 

contribution
Translation 

reserve
hedge 

reserve

Transactions 
with non-

controlling 
interest

Retained 
earnings* Total

Non-
controlling 

interest Total

47,000 454,513 101,300 (118,123) – (210,376) 542,460 816,774 2,512 819,286 

– – – (37,679) – – – (37,679) (179) (37,858)

– – – – – 114,120 114,120 (53) 114,067 

 
 

– – – (37,679) – – 114,120 76,441 (232) 76,209 

 
30 – – – – – – – – (17,633) (17,633)

Issue of shares related to 
 

22,30 10,317 468,998 – – – – – 479,315 – 479,315 

13 – – – – – – (164,500) (164,500) – (164,500)

 

10,317 468,998 – – – – (164,500) 314,815 (17,633) 297,182 

57,317 923,511 101,300 (155,802) – (210,376) 492,080 1,208,030 (15,353) 1,192,677 

– – – (530,959) (84,479) – – (615,438) (12,756) (628,194)

Loss for the year – – – – (193,140) (193,140) (4,182) (197,322)

 

– – – (530,959) (84,479) – (193,140) (808,578) (16,938) (825,516)

 
 

– – – – – 1,254 – 1,254 (1,257) (3)

 
31(a) – – – – – – – – 58,959 58,959 

13 – – – – – – (34,390) (34,390) – (34,390)

 

– – – – – 1,254 (34,390) (33,136) 57,702 24,566 

57,317 923,511 101,300 (686,761) (84,479) (209,122) 264,550 366,316 25,411 391,727 
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2014

For the year ended  
31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) Note 2014
2013 

Restated*

(229,125) 149,480 

14 75,902 42,440 

14 323 (369)

14 2,413 – 

15 24,268 5,720 

9 (1,276) (4,350)

9 90,481 15,455 

27 7,653 (16,880)

438,029 10,845 

1,170 5 

409,838 202,346 

(49) (675)

(2,924) (1,875)

(18,495) 18,956 

Cash generated from operations 388,370 218,752 

9,535 70,325 

(62,690) (37,491)

335,215 251,586 

30 – (177,648)

30(d) (61,603) – 

(3) – 

15 (211) (121)

5 (23,568) (62,783)

14 1,743 1,029 

Loans granted to related parties 32(h) (12,486) (19,620)

504 1,344 

1,308 1,198 

989 – 

(93,327) (256,601)

367,308 282,997 

(460,812) (54,728)

Interest paid (92,151) (14,962)

31(a) 12,827 – 

(12,288) (17,976)

30 – (1,461)

13 (48,490) (150,400)

(233,606) 43,470 

8,282 38,455 

113,219 77,935 

(42,693) (3,171)

21 78,808 113,219 
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1 General Information
Country of incorporation

 

 
 

Approval of the consolidated financial statements 

Principal activities 

Composition of the Group and its joint ventures 

 –

 –
 –
 –

 –  
 
 

 –

 –

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

 

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted by the Group

(a) Adopted by the European Union
 –
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2 Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
 –

 

 

 –

 

 

 
 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(b) Not yet adopted and not yet endorsed by the European Union
 –

 –

 –

 –

 –
 

 –

 –

 –

 –
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2 Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
 –

 
 

 

 –

 
 

 –
 

 

 –
 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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Basis of consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

 

 

 

 

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

(c) Joint ventures
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2 Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(in thousands of US dollars)

As at

31 December 
2013

1 January  
2013

(218,181) (227,138)

(114,099) (116,253)

231,019 223,936 

(178) (30)

(15,906) 26,563 

(1,719) (1,579)

(107) (10)

(9,951) (13,854)

(8,364) (11,709)

(137,486) (120,074)

(114,070) (82,625)

– – 

(1,804) (8,628)

(18,956) (14,712)

(2,656) (14,109)

(137,486) (120,074)

– – 

(in thousands of US dollars)

Year ended 
31 December 

2013

(147,709)

Cost of sales 101,193 

9,912 

Other gains/(losses) – net (447)

18,647 

16,880 

(1,524)

1,524 

– 

– 

– 
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2 Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
 

(in thousands of US dollars)

Year ended 
31 December 

2014

Year ended 
31 December 

2013

(42,505) 32,007 

25,265 (8,904)

8,751 (20,584)

(8,489) 2,519 

 

Segment reporting

Transactions with equity holders 

Revenue recognition

(a) Sales of services

(b) Sales of goods 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(c) Rental income 

(d) Interest income 

(e) Dividend income

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

(b) Transactions and balances

 

(c) Group companies

 –
 –
 –
 –
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2 Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”)

Number of years

5 to 50

3 to 25

3 to 25

1 to 10

 

Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

 

after that reassessment.

(b) Computer software

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued



Financial StatementsGovernanceOverview Strategic Report Additional Information

30Global Ports Investments PLC Annual Report 2014

(c) Client base

(d) Contractual rights
 

Impairment of non-financial assets

Leases

an agreed period of time.

The Group is the lessee

 

The Group is the lessor 
Operating leases
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2 Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
Loans and receivables

 

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

 

hedging relationship is less than 12 months.

gains/(losses) – net”.

 
 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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Prepayments
 

Inventories

Cash and cash equivalents
 
 

Cash flow statement

 

Share capital, share premium and capital contribution

 

 

Trade payables

Provisions and contingent liabilities

future operating losses. 
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2 Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

 

Borrowings 

Dividend distribution

Financial guarantee contracts

Income taxes 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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Value Added Tax (“VAT”)

Employee benefits

 

Offsetting financial instruments
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

3 Financial Risk Management
Financial risk factors

(a) Market risk

 

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013 

Restated

66,461 79,235 

1,056,599 1,156,897 

– –



Financial StatementsGovernanceOverview Strategic Report Additional Information

36Global Ports Investments PLC Annual Report 2014

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

372 452 

– 10,772 

7,870 12,290 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

3 Financial Risk Management continued
(b) Credit risk

 

(in thousands of US dollars) Fully performing Past due Impaired
Impairment 

provision Total

As at 31 December 2014

22,061 2,411 – – 24,472 

2,464 – – – 2,464 

7,366 – – – 7,366 

31,891 2,411 – – 34,302 

28,396 3,105 – – 31,501 

14,944 – – – 14,944 

73,412 54 – – 73,466 

989 – – – 989 

117,741 3,159 – – 120,900 

(c) Liquidity risk
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(in thousands of US dollars)
Less than  

1 month 1-3 months 3-6 months
6 months -  

1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years Total

As at 31 December 2014

6,081 32,195 36,134 70,224 157,016 805,729 272,410 1,379,789 

4,533 9,694 – – – – – 14,227 

– (5,248) (3,756) (6,074) 55,176 62,742 – 102,840 

Total 10,614 36,641 32,378 64,150 212,192 868,471 272,410 1,496,856 

14,032 49,289 60,234 172,937 191,259 829,775 571,535 1,889,061 

67,731 38,292 51 64,333 – – – 170,407 

– (1,431) (1,451) (1,899) (3,619) 34,469 – 26,069 

Total 81,763 86,150 58,834 235,371 187,640 864,244 571,535 2,085,537 

(d) Capital risk management 
 

As at 31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

1,183,643 1,437,313 

1,575,370 2,629,990 

75%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

3 Financial Risk Management continued
(e) Fair value estimation

 

 

 

 
 

 

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
 

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(i) Determination of useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

 
 

 



Financial StatementsGovernanceOverview Strategic Report Additional Information

40Global Ports Investments PLC Annual Report 2014

(ii) Determination of useful lives of contractual rights

(iii) Estimated impairment of goodwill and property, plant and equipment and investments in joint ventures
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements continued
(iv) Tax legislation

5 Segmental Information
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Russian ports 

 –

 –  

 –

 –
 –

 

Finnish ports

VEOS

Holding companies (all other)

Reconciliation adjustments

 –

 –
 –

 –
 –
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

5 Segmental Information continued

(in thousands of USD)
Russian  

ports VEOS
Finnish  

ports

Total 
operating 
segments Holdings

Reconciliation adjustments

Group as per 
proportionate 
consolidation

Effect of 
proportionate 
consolidation

Other 
adjustments

Sales to third parties 602,112 116,522 24,028 742,662 – (74,210) – 668,452 

125 – 102 227 – (25) (202) – 

602,237 116,522 24,130 742,889 – (74,235) (202) 668,452 

Cost of sales (274,697) (87,043) (21,992) (383,732) – 59,834 77 (323,821)

(30,615) (9,864) (1,115) (41,594) (29,156) 6,317 122 (64,311)

Other gains – net 12,053 253 166 12,472 8,058 (388) (8,692) 11,450 

308,978 19,868 1,189 330,035 (21,098) (8,472) (8,695) 291,770 

(572,133) (2,352) (4,926) (579,411) (5,961) 20,267 78 (565,027)

incl. interest income 7,057 38 – 7,095 6,470 (63) (12,158) 1,344 

incl. interest expenses (98,383) (2,470) (1,699) (102,552) (8,679) 3,605 12,158 (95,468)

(263,155) 17,516 (3,737) (249,376) (27,059) 11,795 (8,617) (273,257)

25,631 – (172) 25,459 (1,391) 1,935 – 26,003 

(237,524) 17,516 (3,909) (223,917) (28,450) 13,730 (8,617) (247,254)

25,183 6,768 325 32,276 74 (3,888) – 28,462 
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(in thousands of USD)

Group as per 
proportionate 
consolidation

Equity method 
adjustments

Group as per 
equity method 
consolidation

of joint ventures

Sales to third parties 668,452 (106,070) 562,382 

– – – 

668,452 (106,070) 562,382 

Cost of sales (323,821) 92,345 (231,476)

(64,311) 9,142 (55,169)

– (7,653) (7,653)

Other gains – net 11,450 (911) 10,539 

291,770 (13,147) 278,623 

(565,027) 57,279 (507,748)

incl. interest income 1,344 (68) 1,276 

incl. interest expenses (95,468) 4,987 (90,481)

(273,257) 44,132 (229,125)

26,003 5,800 31,803 

(247,254) 49,932 (197,322)

28,462 (4,894) 23,568 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

5 Segmental Information continued

(in thousands of USD)
Russian  

ports VEOS
Finnish  

ports

Total 
operating 
segments Holdings

Reconciliation adjustments

Group as per 
proportionate 
consolidation

Effect of 
proportionate 
consolidation

Other 
adjustments

82,900 25,606 2,844 111,350 53 (15,277) – 96,126 

24,614 1,284 – 25,898 – (729) – 25,169 

17,960 – – 17,960 – (4,490) – 13,470 

84,236 20,589 8,478 113,303 22,092 (14,426) – 120,969 

12,665 22,878 3,632 39,175 – (12,807) – 26,368 

14,506 15,848 1,011 31,365 12 (8,677) – 22,700 

 
14,914 3,093 1,649 19,656 6 (2,536) – 17,126 

251,795 89,298 17,614 358,707 22,163 (58,942) – 321,928 

53,517 7,609 5,493 66,619 6,993 (7,209) (199) 66,204 

 
305,312 96,907 23,107 425,326 29,156 (66,151) (199) 388,132 
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(in thousands of USD)

Group as per 
proportionate 
consolidation

Equity method 
adjustments

Group as per 
equity method 
consolidation

of joint ventures

96,126 (20,224) 75,902 

25,169 (901) 24,268 

13,470 (13,470) – 

120,969 (22,689) 98,280 

26,368 (15,542) 10,826 

22,700 (10,183) 12,517 

17,126 (4,513) 12,613 

321,928 (87,522) 234,406 

66,204 (13,965) 52,239 

Total cost of sales, administrative, selling and marketing expenses 388,132 (101,487) 286,645 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

5 Segmental Information continued

(in thousands of USD)
Russian  

ports VEOS
Finnish  

ports

Total 
operating 
segments Holdings

Reconciliation adjustments

Group as per 
proportionate 
consolidation

Effect of 
proportionate 
consolidation

Other 
adjustments

 
781,718 206,985 12,291 1,000,994 89 (117,851) – 883,232 

– – – – 165,836 – (165,836) – 

851,618 63,144 4,152 918,914 – (10,878) – 908,036 

1,097,253 – 16,656 1,113,909 1,157,975 (6,176) (2,248,146) 17,562 

5,454 2,316 – 7,770 – (1,272) – 6,498 

71,868 40,826 3,841 116,535 7,979 (21,128) (33,353) 70,033 

80,099 4,687 1,467 86,253 10,367 (5,624) – 90,996 

2,888,010 317,958 38,407 3,244,375 1,342,246 (162,929) (2,447,335)1,976,357 

1,208,059 43,473 5,723 1,257,255 26,899 (53,441) (94,514) 1,136,199 

306,977 – 296 307,273 (808) (966) (30,704) 274,795 

22,586 27,154 2,831 52,571 30,155 (14,221) (30,346) 38,159 

137,369 19,457 1,985 158,811 16,200 (13,915) (29,183) 131,913 

11,502 2,365 1 13,868 53 (1,310) (130) 12,481 

1,686,493 92,449 10,836 1,789,778 72,499 (83,853) (184,877) 1,593,547 

25,411 – – 25,411 – – – 25,411 
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(in thousands of USD)

Group as per 
proportionate 
consolidation

Equity method 
adjustments

Group as per 
equity method 

consolidation of 
joint ventures

883,232 (146,566) 736,666 

– 188,340 188,340 

908,036 (85,789) 822,247 

17,562 15,224 32,786 

6,498 (1,502) 4,996 

70,033 (20,314) 49,719 

90,996 (12,188) 78,808 

Total assets 1,976,357 (62,795) 1,913,562 

1,136,199 (62,531) 1,073,668 

274,795 27,803 302,598 

38,159 (13,484) 24,675 

131,913 (21,938) 109,975 

12,481 (1,562) 10,919 

Total liabilities 1,593,547 (71,712) 1,521,835 

Non-controlling interest 25,411 – 25,411 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

5 Segmental Information continued

(in thousands of USD)
Russian  

ports VEOS
Finnish  

ports

Total 
operating 
segments Holdings

Reconciliation adjustments

Group as per 
proportionate 
consolidation

Effect of 
proportionate 
consolidation

Other 
adjustments

Sales to third parties 370,712 202,402 23,544 596,658 – (116,705) – 479,953 

24 – 102 126 – (40) (86) – 

370,736 202,402 23,646 596,784 – (116,745) (86) 479,953 

Cost of sales (164,479) (128,713) (21,750) (314,942) – 76,696 74 (238,172)

(22,874) (13,140) (1,125) (37,139) (26,017) 7,637 12 (55,507)

Other gains – net 1,318 782 383 2,483 141,297 (423) (140,109) 3,248 

184,701 61,331 1,154 247,186 115,280 (32,835) (140,109) 189,522 

(44,452) (3,573) (2,650) (50,675) 4,713 7,418 26 (38,518)

incl. interest income 6,143 43 33 6,219 4,360 (93) (8,499) 1,987 

incl. interest expenses (28,579) (2,946) (1,922) (33,447) (696) 4,058 8,499 (21,586)

140,249 57,758 (1,496) 196,511 119,993 (25,417) (140,083) 151,004 

(40,156) 1,329 (192) (39,019) 2,018 64 – (36,937)

100,093 59,087 (1,688) 157,492 122,011 (25,353) (140,083) 114,067 

64,584 12,706 1,676 78,966 38 (7,232) – 71,772 
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(in thousands of USD)

Group as per 
proportionate 
consolidation

Equity method 
adjustments

Group as per 
equity method 

consolidation of 
joint ventures

Sales to third parties 479,953 (147,709) 332,244 

– – –

479,953 (147,709) 332,244 

Cost of sales (238,172) 101,193 (136,979)

(55,507) 9,912 (45,595)

– 16,880 16,880 

Other gains – net 3,248 (447) 2,801 

189,522 (20,171) 169,351 

(38,518) 18,647 (19,871)

incl. interest income 1,987 2,363 4,350 

incl. interest expenses (21,586) 6,131 (15,455)

151,004 (1,524) 149,480 

(36,937) 1,524 (35,413)

114,067 – 114,067 

71,772 (8,989) 62,783 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

5 Segmental Information continued

(in thousands of USD)
Russian  

ports VEOS
Finnish  

ports

Total 
operating 
segments Holdings

Reconciliation adjustments

Group as per 
proportionate 
consolidation

Effect of 
proportionate 
consolidation

Other 
adjustments

51,786 23,702 2,600 78,088 28 (14,860) – 63,256 

6,107 2,494 – 8,601 – (1,344) – 7,257 

58,550 25,177 8,387 92,114 19,992 (16,942) – 95,164 

14,703 46,801 3,153 64,657 – (24,692) – 39,965 

9,636 28,663 983 39,282 10 (15,091) – 24,201 

 
11,815 4,477 1,298 17,590 4 (3,252) – 14,342 

152,597 131,314 16,421 300,332 20,034 (76,181) – 244,185 

34,756 10,539 6,454 51,749 5,983 (8,152) (86) 49,494 

 
187,353 141,853 22,875 352,081 26,017 (84,333) (86) 293,679 
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(in thousands of USD)

Group as per 
proportionate 
consolidation

Equity method 
adjustments

Group as per 
equity method 

consolidation of 
joint ventures

63,256 (20,816) 42,440 

7,257 (1,537) 5,720 

95,164 (25,647) 69,517 

39,965 (27,273) 12,692 

24,201 (16,608) 7,593 

14,342 (5,275) 9,067 

244,185 (97,156) 147,029 

49,494 (13,949) 35,545 

293,679 (111,105) 182,574 
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5 Segmental Information continued

(in thousands of USD)
Russian  

ports VEOS
Finnish  

ports

Total 
operating 
segments Holdings

Reconciliation adjustments

Group as per 
proportionate 
consolidation

Effect of 
proportionate 
consolidation

Other 
adjustments

1,442,506 256,040 15,191 1,713,737 75 (158,135) – 1,555,677 

– – – – 157,302 – (157,302) – 

1,492,026 72,884 4,716 1,569,626 – (14,387) – 1,555,239 

87,302 – 33,739 121,041 1,955,829 (12,091) (2,044,835) 19,944 

8,151 2,586 – 10,737 – (1,435) – 9,302 

893,573 42,938 4,510 941,021 76,945 (21,511) (844,421) 152,034 

103,185 3,115 1,434 107,734 17,669 (3,820) – 121,583 

4,026,743 377,563 59,590 4,463,896 2,207,820 (211,379) (3,046,558) 3,413,779 

1,440,039 71,424 31,386 1,542,849 603,619 (76,930) (748,448) 1,321,090 

456,751 – 2,463 459,214 (1,881) (2,278) (3,432) 451,623 

50,568 40,951 3,079 94,598 149,516 (19,458) (10,677) 213,979 

221,498 22,130 2,612 246,240 232,706 (15,477) (233,176) 230,293 

1,500 5,253 1 6,754 2 (2,639) – 4,117 

2,170,356 139,758 39,541 2,349,655 983,962 (116,782) (995,733) 2,221,102 

(15,353) – – (15,353) – – – (15,353)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(in thousands of USD)

Group as per 
proportionate 
consolidation

Equity method 
adjustments

Group as per 
equity method 

consolidation of 
joint ventures

1,555,677 (218,359) 1,337,318 

– 231,019 231,019 

1,555,239 (114,099) 1,441,140 

19,944 (4,566) 15,378 

9,302 (1,719) 7,583 

152,034 (20,881) 131,153 

121,583 (8,364) 113,219 

Total assets 3,413,779 (136,969) 3,276,810 

1,321,090 (90,165) 1,230,925 

451,623 (3,276) 448,347 

213,979 (16,968) 197,011 

230,293 (23,905) 206,388 

4,117 (2,655) 1,462 

Total liabilities 2,221,102 (136,969) 2,084,133 

Non-controlling interest (15,353) – (15,353)

 

For the year ended
31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013 

Restated

32,527 20,948 

306,777 236,339 

49,927 17,609 

49,643 11,194 

21,387 20,783 

Other 102,121 25,371 

529,855 311,296 

562,382 332,244 
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6 Expenses by Nature

(in thousands of US dollars)

For the year ended
31 December

2014
2013  

Restated

98,280 69,517 

75,902 42,440 

24,268 5,720 

10,826 12,692 

12,517 7,593 

12,613 9,067 

9,234 6,738 

3,615 3,993 

1,763 1,590 

Operating lease rentals 7,570 2,449 

7,624 7,725 

2,249 1,147 

20,184 11,903 

286,645 182,574 

Cost of sales

(in thousands of US dollars)

For the year ended
31 December

2014
2013  

Restated

63,109 40,854 

74,709 41,858 

24,237 5,669 

10,826 12,692 

12,162 7,427 

11,669 8,464 

8,522 6,134 

Operating lease rentals 4,805 223 

7,624 7,725 

1,583 948 

12,230 4,985 

231,476 136,979 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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Administrative, selling and marketing expenses

(in thousands of US dollars)

For the year ended
31 December

2014
2013  

Restated

35,171 28,663 

1,193 582 

31 51 

355 166 

944 603 

712 604 

3,615 3,993 

1,763 1,590 

Operating lease rentals 2,765 2,226 

666 199 

7,954 6,918 

55,169 45,595 

7 Other Gains/(Losses) – Net

(in thousands of US dollars)

For the year ended  
31 December

2014
2013  

Restated

12,450 2,507 

(1,410) –

(736) – 

Other gains/(losses) – net 235 294 

10,539 2,801 

8 Employee Benefit Expense

(in thousands of US dollars)

For the year ended  
31 December

2014
2013  

Restated

78,059 57,475 

18,489 10,425 

1,732 1,617 

98,280 69,517 
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9 Finance Costs – Net

(in thousands of US dollars)

For the year ended
31 December

2014
2013  

Restated

502 775 

668 138 

106 3,437 

1,276 4,350 

(87,377) (11,048)

(1,805) (3,978)

(1,299) (429)

(90,481) (15,455)

(418,543) (8,766)

(507,748) (19,871)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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10 Income Tax Expense

(in thousands of US dollars)

For the year ended
31 December

2014
2013  

Restated

68,365 33,760 

(100,168) 1,653 

(31,803) 35,413 

(in thousands of US dollars)

For the year ended
31 December

2014
2013  

Restated

(229,125) 149,480 

(1) (45,825) 29,896 

14,497 4,849 

1,531 (3,376)

(2,006) 6,326 
(2) – (2,282)

(31,803) 35,413 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

11 Net Foreign Exchange (Losses)/Gains

(in thousands of US dollars)

For the year ended  
31 December

2014
2013

Restated

(418,543) (8,766)

12,450 2,507 

(406,093) (6,259)

12 Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

For the year ended  
31 December

2014 2013

(193,140) 114,120 

573,171 471,131 

 
(0.34) 0.24 

13 Dividend Distribution
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14 Property, Plant and Equipment

(in thousands of US dollars) Land
Buildings  

and facilities
Assets under 
construction

Loading 
equipment 

and 
machinery

Other 
production 
equipment equipment Total

Cost 306,236 291,438 50,746 164,654 47,372 2,666 863,112 

– (79,574) – (65,279) (15,204) (2,150) (162,207)

306,236 211,864 50,746 99,375 32,168 516 700,905 

– 43,979 4,891 53,172 11,666 100 113,808 

50,663 354,499 32,382 155,471 13,518 397 606,930 

– 12,017 (12,010) (7) (108) 108 –

– (108) (529) – (23) – (660)

– (18,730) – (19,579) (3,849) (282) (42,440)

(22,049) (16,200) (3,419) (7,999) (2,502) (36) (52,205)

       

334,850 587,321 72,061 280,433 50,870 803 1,326,338 

Cost 334,850 676,098 72,061 365,353 67,065 3,128 1,518,555 

– (88,777) – (84,920) (16,195) (2,325) (192,217)

334,850 587,321 72,061 280,433 50,870 803 1,326,338 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

14 Property, Plant and Equipment continued

(in thousands of US dollars) Land
Buildings  

and facilities
Assets under 
construction

Loading 
equipment 

and 
machinery

Other 
production 
equipment equipment Total

Cost 334,850 676,098 72,061 365,353 67,065 3,128 1,518,555 

– (88,777) – (84,920) (16,195) (2,325) (192,217)

334,850 587,321 72,061 280,433 50,870 803 1,326,338 

– 7,579 (176) 9,260 5,563 539 22,765 

– 22,676 (30,333) 3,044 4,614 (1) – 

– (125) (1,777) (30) (2,396) (151) (4,479)

– (37,109) – (28,279) (10,049) (465) (75,902)

(140,044) (243,893) (18,736) (112,948) (20,570) (296) (536,487)

       

194,806 336,449 21,039 151,480 28,032 429 732,235 

At 31 December 2014

Cost 194,806 456,206 21,039 257,874 48,637 3,354 981,916 

– (119,757) – (106,394) (20,605) (2,925) (249,681)

194,806 336,449 21,039 151,480 28,032 429 732,235 
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(in thousands of US dollars)

For the year ended  
31 December

2014
2013

Restated

4,479 660 

(2,413) –

2,066 660 

(1) (323) 369 

1,743 1,029 

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

8,654 15,214 

20,423 50,553 

– 3,429 

29,077 69,196 

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

30,288 42,641 

70,211 152,852 

5,825 11,026 

106,324 206,519 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

15 Intangible Assets

(in thousands of US dollars) Goodwill
Contractual  

rights Client base
Computer  

software Total

Cost 19,246 39,218 28,674 9,361 96,499 

– (16,248) (17,750) (8,429) (42,427)

19,246 22,970 10,924 932 54,072 

– – – 121 121 

– 1,395,014 – 11 1,395,025 

– (2,773) (2,600) (347) (5,720)

(1,385) (200) (721) (52) (2,358)

17,861 1,415,011 7,603 665 1,441,140 

Cost 17,861 1,434,031 27,953 1,418 1,481,263 

– (19,020) (20,350) (753) (40,123)

17,861 1,415,011 7,603 665 1,441,140 

– – – 211 211 

– (21,833) (2,236) (199) (24,268)

(7,470) (584,665) (2,418) (283) (594,836)

10,391 808,513 2,949 394 822,247 

At 31 December 2014

Cost 10,391 833,192 24,191 920 868,694 

– (24,679) (21,242) (526) (46,447)

10,391 808,513 2,949 394 822,247 

 

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

4,494 7,725 

5,897 10,136 

10,391 17,861 
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16 Financial Instruments by Category

As at 31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

(1) 34,302 119,911 

– 989 

78,808 113,219 

113,110 234,119 

1,183,643 1,437,313 
(2) 14,227 170,407 

1,197,870 1,607,720 

102,840 26,069 

102,840 26,069 

17 Credit Quality of Financial Assets 
 

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

165 574 

16,290 18,229 

2,259 14,705 

Loans to third parties 205 239 

– 989 

1,215 8,016 

– 61,100 

11,757 13,889 

31,891 117,741 
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17 Credit Quality of Financial Assets continued

As at 31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 
Agency Rating 2014

2013
Restated

1,431 40,121 

Baa1 – Ba3 74,964 58,344 

Caa3 183 172 

2,149 9,998 

– 333 

81 4,251 

 78,808 113,219 

18 Inventories 

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

Spare parts 4,996 7,583 

4,996 7,583 

19 Trade and Other Receivables

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

19,189 27,510 

5,283 3,991 

24,472 31,501 

892 2,468 

6,474 9,898 

– 61,100 

6,404 11,703 

161 367 

Loans to third parties 205 239 

2,259 14,705 

2,476 9,529 

43,343 141,510 

Less non-current portion:

Loans to related parties (1,791) (14,174)

– (687)

(294) – 

(2,085) (14,861)

Current portion 41,258 126,649 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

2,254 2,484 

155 596 

2 36 

– 43 

2,411 3,159 

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

13,514 92,450 

20,867 34,877 

8,962 14,183 

43,343 141,510 
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20 Bank Deposits with Maturity Over 90 Days

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

– 989 

– 989 

 

21 Cash and Cash Equivalents

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

19,219 88,775 

59,589 24,444 

78,808 113,219 

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

78,808 113,219 

78,808 113,219 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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22 Share Capital, Share Premium
Authorised share capital

Issued share capital

 

 
any general meeting. 

(in thousands of US dollars)
Number of shares 

‘000 Share capital Share premium Total

470,000 47,000 454,513 501,513 

103,171 10,317 468,998 479,315 

573,171 57,317 923,511 980,828 
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23 Borrowings

As at 31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

1,056,296 1,151,271 

15,789 29,779 

672 824 

Loans from third parties 814 41,000 

97 8,051 

1,073,668 1,230,925 

102,369 181,530 

2,511 2,787 

4,426 10,997 

664 1,117 

Loans from third parties 2 6,424 

3 3,533 

109,975 206,388 

1,183,643 1,437,313 

As at 31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

120,379 102,857 

727,850 652,023 

208,978 445,442 

1,057,207 1,200,322 

As at 31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

5,860 13,716 

3,843 7,512 

7,133 14,232 

57,535 101,349 

74,371 136,809 

(52,820) (94,092)

21,551 42,717 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

5,090 12,113 

3,186 5,966 

3,568 7,936 

9,707 16,702 

21,551 42,717 

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

6 months or less 1,121,024 1,288,688 

– – 

48,953 111,497 

9,719 20,816 

1,179,696 1,421,001 

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

127,394 220,237 

1,056,249 1,206,304 

– 10,772 

1,183,643 1,437,313 

(percentage)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

7.96 6.68 

Loans from third parties 6.38 8.79 

9.56 9.08
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23 Borrowings continued

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

– 400,000 

– 1,247

– 401,247

 –

 –

24 Derivative Financial Instruments
 

 

 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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25 Deferred Income Tax Liabilities

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

30,701 517 

 

(199,758) (422,278)

(169,057) (421,761)

(in thousands of US dollars)

For the year ended  
31 December

2014
2013

Restated

(421,761) (82,764)

100,168 (1,653)

Other movements: 

– (343,513)

152,536 6,169 

(169,057) (421,761)

(in thousands of US dollars)

Property, 
plant and 

equipment
Withholding 

tax provision
Intangible 

assets Borrowings Tax losses Subtotal
Other assets 
and liabilities Grand total

(77,098) (3,916) (2,833) – 182 (83,665) 901 (82,764)

(5,568) 702 963 (681) 258 (4,326) 2,673 (1,653)

(53,662) (10,262) (279,034) (1,306) – (344,264) 751 (343,513)

5,689 92 191 17 (20) 5,969 200 6,169 

(130,639) (13,384) (280,713) (1,970) 420 (426,286) 4,525 (421,761)

1,909 3,223 4,816 (1,542) 93,072 101,478 (1,310) 100,168 

54,013 2,107 116,038 2,105 (19,911) 154,352 (1,816) 152,536 

(74,717) (8,054) (159,859) (1,407) 73,581 (170,456) 1,399 (169,057)
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26 Trade and Other Payables

(in thousands of US dollars)

As at 31 December

2014
2013

Restated

2,984 2,915 

232 314 

4 4,934 

692 3,895 

921 4,209 

– 8,466 

– 5,634 

– 122,703 

2,245 2,718 

7,149 14,619 

5,669 18,439 

4,779 8,165 

24,675 197,011 

27 Joint Ventures 
 

(in thousands of US dollars) VEOS MLT CD Holding Total

144,876 86,143 – 231,019 

8,786 7,292 (23,731) (7,653)

(17,976) (34,472) 235 (52,213)

– (6,309) – (6,309)

 
– – 23,496 23,496 

135,686 52,654 – 188,340 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(in thousands of US dollars) VEOS MLT CD Holding Total

132,657 91,279 – 223,936 

29,578 3,780 (16,478) 16,880 

6,287 (4,962) 3,166 4,491 

(23,646) (3,954) – (27,600)

 
  13,312 13,312 

144,876 86,143 – 231,019 

Selected income statement items

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(in thousands of USD) VEOS MLT CD Holding

116,522 54,065 9,730 

(26,890) (7,562) (2,680)

38 177 – 

(2,470) (1,141) (8,115)

17,571 13,811 (96,131)

– (4,088) (3,647)

17,571 9,723 (99,778)

(23,673) (25,630) 54,920 

(6,102) (15,907) (44,858)

– 8,407 – 

Selected balance sheet items

As at 31 December 2014

(in thousands of USD) VEOS MLT CD Holding

224,271 47,060 19,546 

27,993 11,149 1,979 

17,606 6,830 928 

45,599 17,979 2,907 

269,870 65,039 22,453 

43,473 10,519 116,299 

– 3,863 – 

43,473 14,382 116,299 

19,457 6,352 10,393 

27,285 6,875 670 

46,742 13,227 11,063 

90,215 27,609 127,362 

    

179,655 37,430 (104,909)
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27 Joint Ventures continued
Income statement

(in thousands of USD)

As at 31 December 2013

VEOS MLT CD Holding

202,402 50,565 11,506 

(26,195) (9,016) (3,399)

43 258 – 

(2,945) (1,228) (8,543)

57,826 7,885 (21,887)

1,330 (2,845) (74)

59,156 5,040 (21,961)

8,133 (3,259) 4,210 

67,289 1,781 (17,751)

47,292 5,271 – 

Balance sheet

(in thousands of USD)

As at 31 December 2013

VEOS MLT CD Holding

276,927 80,759 62,290 

23,012 8,103 961 

20,681 8,351 1,732 

43,693 16,454 2,693 

320,620 97,213 64,983 

71,424 17,734 123,436 

– 6,921 2,188 

71,424 24,655 125,624 

22,130 7,000 10,651 

41,308 3,815 1,405 

63,438 10,815 12,056 

134,862 35,470 137,680 

    

185,758 61,743 (72,697)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(in thousands of USD)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

VEOS MLT CD Holding Total

185,758 61,743 (72,697) 174,804 

17,571 9,723 (99,778) (72,484)

– – 12,646 12,646 

– (8,412) – (8,412)

(23,674) (25,624) 54,920 5,622 

Closing net assets at the end of the year 179,655 37,430 (104,909) 112,176 

50% 75% 75%  

89,828 28,072 (78,682) 39,218 

45,858 24,582 – 70,440 

– – 78,682 78,682

135,686 52,654 – 188,340 

(in thousands of USD)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

VEOS MLT CD Holding Total

165,761 65,233 (54,946) 176,048 

59,156 5,040 (21,961) 42,235 

(47,292) (5,271) – (52,563)

8,133 (3,259) 4,210 9,084 

Closing net assets at the end of the year 185,758 61,743 (72,697) 174,804 

 

92,879 46,307 (54,523) 84,663 

51,997 39,836 – 91,833 

– – 54,523 54,523 

144,876 86,143 – 231,019 
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28 Contingencies 
Operating environment of the Group 

 

 –
 –  

 –
 –
 –

Tax legislation in Russia

 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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Environmental matters

 

Legal proceedings
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29 Commitments 
Capital commitments

As at 31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

8,661 13,868 

8,661 13,868 

Operating lease commitments – Group as lessee 

As at 31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

2,935 4,697 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 10,856 17,488 

Later than 5 years 59,080 103,760 

72,871 125,945 

As at 31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

– 1,463 

– 1,463 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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30 Business Combinations
 

(in thousands of US dollars) Note

(a) 480,776

229,354

(61,100)

(d) 122,703

 771,733

 

51,706 

606,930 

1,395,014 

622,719 

Other assets 8,953 

(9,184)

(949,166)

(26,069)

(343,513)

 1,357,390 

(e) (603,290)

 754,100 

(f) 17,633 

 771,733 
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30 Business Combinations continued

 

 

31 Transactions with Non-controlling Interest 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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32 Related Party Transactions 

(a) Sale of services

For the year ended  
31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

116,916 58,202 

50 12 

Other related parties 91 8 

117,057 58,222 

(b) Sales of property, plant and equipment
Net book amount of sold property, plant and equipment

For the year ended  
31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

– 6

Other related parties – 12 

– 18 

Profit on sales of property, plant and equipment

For the year ended  
31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

– 1

Other related parties – 8 

– 9 
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32 Related Party Transactions continued 
(c) Purchases of services and incurred expenses

For the year ended  
31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

1,910 1,985 

Other related parties 5,115 2,208 

7,025 4,193 

(d) Interest income

For the year ended  
31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

106 3,439 

106 3,439 

(e) Trade and other receivables and prepayments 

As at 31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

5,437 4,356 

6,480 9,899 

Other related parties 1 1 

11,918 14,256 

(f) Trade and other payables

As at 31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

921 9,932 

Other related parties 232 225 

1,153 10,157 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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(g) Key management compensation/directors’ remuneration

For the year ended  
31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

15,513 16,154 

 

Fees 391 393 

456 466 

847 859 

(h) Loans to related parties 

For the year ended  
31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

14,705 5,624 

12,486 19,362 

106 3,439 

Loan and interest repaid during the year (622) (1,372)

(23,496) (13,312)

(920) 964 

2,259 14,705 

For the year ended  
31 December

(in thousands of US dollars) 2014
2013

Restated

– –

– 258 

Loan and interest repaid during the year – (258)

– –
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33 Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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Board of Directors and Other Officers

Board of Directors
 

(Mrs. Iana Boyd Penkova is the alternate to Mr. Tiemen Meester) 
Chairman of the Board of Directors since 16 December 2014 
Non-Executive Director 
Member of Remuneration and Nomination Committees

 
(Mr. Mikhail Loganov is the alternate to Mr. Nikita Mishin)  
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors since 16 December 2014 
Chairman of the Board of Directors until 16 December 2014 
Non-Executive Director 
Member of Remuneration and Nomination Committees

 
(Mrs. Iana Boyd Penkova and Mr. Christian Moller Laursen are the alternates to Mr. Kim Fejfer) 
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors until 16 December 2014 
Non-Executive Director 
Member of Remuneration, Nomination and Audit and Risk Committees

 
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director 
Chairman of Remuneration and Nomination Committees

 
Independent Non-Executive Director 
Chairman of Audit and Risk Committee

 
(Mr. Alexander Iodchin is the alternate to Dr. Alexander Nazarchuk) 
Executive Director 

 
Executive Director 
Member of Nomination Committee

 
Executive Director 

 
Non-Executive Director 
Member of Audit and Risk Committee

 
(Ms. Chrystalla Stylianou is the alternate to Ms. Laura Michael) 
Non-Executive Director
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Non-Executive Director

 
Non-executive Director

 
Non-Executive Director

 
Non-Executive Director

 
Executive Director

 
Non-Executive Director

Board support

Company Secretary
Team Nominees Limited
20 Omirou Street  

 
 

Cyprus

Registered Office
20 Omirou Street  

 
 

Cyprus 
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Report of the Board of Directors 

Principal Activities

Review of Developments, Position and Performance of the Group’s Business

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Future Developments of the Company

Results

Dividends
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Share Capital
Authorised share capital

 
any general meeting.

The Role of the Board of Directors
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Report of the Board of Directors continued

Members of the Board of Directors
 

 

 
 

same date.

 
 

Directors’ Interests

Name Type of holding
Shares held at

31 December 2014
Shares held at

31 December 2013

 
related entities 

39,731,086 ordinary shares 39,731,086 ordinary shares 
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Board Performance

Board of Directors Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee Audit and Risk Committee

A B A B A B A B

7 7 – – – – – – 

15 15 2 2 – – – – 

Bryan Smith 15 15 2 2 6 6 – – 

11 15 2 2 6 6 – – 

15 15 – – – – – – 

11 15 – – – – – – 

15 15 – – – – 9 9

14 15 – – – – 9 9

14 15 2 2 5 6 8 9

15 15 2 2 6 6 9 9

13 15 – – – – – – 

7 7 – – – – – – 

Chrystalla Stylianou 14 15 – – – – – – 

11 15 – – – – – – 

8 8 – – – – – – 

8 8 – – – – – – 
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Report of the Board of Directors continued

The Board Committees

 

 

 

senior management of the Company.
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of the Group.

Corporate Governance

 –
 –
 –
 –
 –
 –
 –
 –
 –

Board and Management Remuneration
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Report of the Board of Directors continued

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Branches

Treasury Shares

Going Concern

Auditors

By Order of the Board

Tiemen Meester

Limassol 
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

 

By Order of the Board

Mikhail Loganov    Alexander Iodchin

Limassol 
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Global Ports Investments Plc

Report on the Financial Statements
 

Board of Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

Auditor’s responsibility
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Opinion
 

Report on Other Legal Requirements
 

 –
 –
 –
 –

 –

Other Matter

Tasos Nolas
 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Note
2014

US$000
2013

US$000

23 (i) 25,972 139,638

5 365 5,351

7 (5,453) (4,599)

Other (losses)/gains – net 6 (540) 1,768

14/15 (85,612) – 

(65,268) 142,158

9 (5,565) (604)

(70,833) 141,554

10 (5) (33)

(70,838) 141,521

– – 

Total comprehensive income for the year (70,838) 141,521
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Balance Sheet
at 31 December 2014

Note
2014

US$000
2013

US$000

Assets

Non-current assets

13 40 52

14 958,251 1,881,553

15 94,960 143,013

16 67,931 71,341

Total non-current assets 1,121,182 2,095,959

Current assets

16 1,219 3,970

17 6,567 75,500

18 2,730 14,054

Total current assets 10,516 93,524

Total assets 1,131,698 2,189,483

Equity and liabilities

Capital and reserves

19 57,317 57,317

Share premium 19 923,511 923,511

101,300 101,300

27,604 132,832

Total equity 1,109,732 1,214,960

Non-current liabilities

20 – 125

21 21,200 – 

Total non-current liabilities 21,200 125

Current liabilities

20 766 141,104

– 3

21 – 833,291

Total current liabilities 766 974,398

Total liabilities 21,966 974,523

Total equity and liabilities 1,131,698 2,189,483 

Alexander Iodchin,   Mikhail Loganov,

By Order of the Board
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Note

Share 
capital

US$000

Share  
premium
US$000

Capital 
contributions

US$000

Retained 
earnings(1)

US$000
Total

US$000

Balance at 1 January 2013 47,000 454,513 101,300 155,811 758,624

Comprehensive income

– – – 141,521 141,521

Transactions with owners

Issue of shares 19 10,317 468,998 – – 479,315

19 – – – (164,500) (164,500)

10,317 468,998 – (164,500) 314,815

Balance at 31 December 2013/ 
 1 January 2014 57,317 923,511 101,300 132,832 1,214,960

Comprehensive income

Loss for the year – – – (70,838) (70,838)

Transactions with owners

19 – – – (34,390) (34,390)

– – – (34,390) (34,390)

Balance at 31 December 2014 57,317 923,511 101,300 27,604 1,109,732
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Note
2014

US$000
2013

US$000

(70,833) 141,554

13 18 17

14,15 85,612 – 

6 – 6

23 (i) (25,972) (139,638)

5 (4,188) (4,304)

9 5,565 604

 
6 (13) (300)

6 (144) (144)

4,520 (590)

(5,435) (2,795)

4,481 (2,035)

(3,168) 375

Cash used in operations (4,122) (4,455)

(8) (30)

Net cash used in operating activities (4,130) (4,485) 

13 (6) (16)

831,947 – 

14 (104,269) (229,354)

15 (8) (10)

20 (61,603) – 

19 – (1,461)

(17,525) (70,285)

13,103 46,332

2,904 1,053

29,324 183,470

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 693,867 (70,271)

184,750 229,397

(722,782) – 

Interest paid (114,560) – 

19 (48,490) (150,400)

(701,082) 78,997

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (11,324) 4,241

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 14,054 9,813

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18 2,730 14,054
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 General Information
Country of incorporation

 

Approval of the parent company financial statements

Principal activities

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation
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Consolidated financial statements

New Standards, interpretations and amendments adopted by the Company

New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet adopted by the Company

Not yet adopted and not yet endorsed by the European Union

 –
 

 –

 

 –

 –  

 –

 –
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

Revenue recognition

(i) Interest income

(ii) Dividend income

Employee benefits

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

 

(ii) Transactions and balances

 

Current and deferred income tax
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Property, plant and equipment
 

 

%

20

50

Investments in subsidiaries
 

any impairment.

Investments in joint ventures
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
Impairment of non-financial assets

 

Loans and receivables

 

 

 

Share capital and share premium

 

Dividend distribution
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Leases

Provisions and contingent liabilities

for future operating losses.

 

Borrowings
 

 

 

Financial guarantee contracts
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued
Derivatives

Trade payables

Cash and cash equivalents

maturities of three months or less.

3 Financial Risk Management
(i) Financial risk factors

Market risk
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Liquidity risk

Less than
1 year

US$000

1 to 2
years

US$000

2 to 5
years

US$000
Over 5 years

US$000
Total

US$000

140,960 – – – 140,960

393,229 – – – 393,229

833,291 – – – 833,291

1,367,480 – – – 1,367,480

638 – – – 638

628,747 – – – 628,747

– 23,594 – – 23,594

629,385 23,594 – – 652,979

Capital risk management

(ii) Fair value estimation
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

3 Financial Risk Management continued

 

 

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 
Estimates and Judgments Are Continually Evaluated and Are Based on Historical Experience and Other Factors,  
Including Expectations of Future Events That Are Believed to Be Reasonable Under the Circumstances.
(i) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Estimated impairment of investments
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Financial guarantees

(ii) Critical judgments in applying the Company’s accounting policies

5 Finance Income – Net

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

– 2

– 4

4,188 4,298

(3,823) 1,047

365 5,351

6 Other Gains – Net

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

– 6

(697) 1,318

13 300

144 144

(540) 1,768

7 Expenses by Nature

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

18 17

75 118

745 642

1,032 956

83 72

1,090 631

1,561 1,518

511 462

21 43

40 28

277 112

Total administrative expenses 5,453 4,599



28 Global Ports Investments PLC Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

7 Expenses by Nature continued

 

8 Staff Costs

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

983 913

44 39

5 4

1,032 956

9 Finance Cost

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

5,565 604

10 Income Tax Expense

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

– 32

5 1

5 33

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

(70,833) 141,554

(8,854) 17,694

11,762 576

(3,266) (17,683)

– 30

Group relief 319 (585)

39 –

5 1

5 33
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11 Financial Instruments by Category

Loans and
receivables

US$000
Total

US$000

31 December 2013

Assets as per balance sheet

71,341 71,341

3,970 3,970

75,386 75,386

14,054 14,054

Total 164,751 164,751

liabilities
US$000

Total
US$000

Liabilities as per balance sheet 

141,229 141,229

833,291 833,291

Total 974,520 974,520

Loans and
receivables

US$000
Total

US$000

31 December 2014

Assets as per balance sheet

67,931 67,931

1,219 1,219

6,567 6,567

2,730 2,730

Total 78,447 78,447

liabilities
US$000

Total
US$000

Liabilities as per balance sheet 

766 766

21,200 21,200

Total 21,966 21,966
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

12 Credit Quality of Financial Assets

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

Fully performing trade and other receivables

Group 1 68,956 75,090

Group 2 6,474 9,826

Group 3 287 4,674

Group 4 – 7

Group 5 – 61,100

75,717 150,697

1 1

– 14,014

Baa1 2,716 –

Caa3 13 39

2,730 14,054

13 Property, Plant and Equipment

Motor vehicles
and other

equipment
US$000

Total
US$000

Year ended 31 December 2013

53 53

16 16

(17) (17)

52 52

At 31 December 2013

Cost 102 102

(50) (50)

52 52

Year ended 31 December 2014

52 52

6 6

(18) (18)

40 40

At 31 December 2014

Cost 110 110

(70) (70)

40 40
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14 Investments in Subsidiaries

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

At beginning of year 1,881,553 507,180

104,269 1,374,376

(998,571) (3)

(29,000) –

At end of year 958,251 1,881,553

 

Name Principal activity
Country of 

incorporation
2014

% holding
2013

% holding

Cyprus 100 100

100 100

– 100

Cyprus 100 100

Cyprus 100 100

100 –

100 –

Cyprus 0.05 0.05

15 Investments in Joint Ventures

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

At beginning of year 143,013 143,003

8,559 10

(56,612) –

At end of year 94,960 143,013

Name Principal activity
Country of 

incorporation
2014

% holding
2013

% holding

Finland 75 75

Ireland 75 75

Cyprus 75 75
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

16 Loans Receivable

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

Non-current

67,931 71,341

Current

1,025 3,749

Loans to third parties 194 221

1,219 3,970

Total 69,150 75,311

Fair values

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

Loans to related parties 67,999 68,689

 

 

2014
%

2013
%

Loans to related parties 5.7% 6.1

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

13,300 17,287

905 4,460

54,946 53,564

69,151 75,311
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17 Trade and Other Receivables

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

6,474 9,826

Prepayments 61 114

– 7

32 4,453

– 61,100

6,567 75,500

18 Cash and Bank Balances

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

2,730 14,054

2,730 14,054

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

2,036 11,031

694 3,023

2,730 14,054

Non-cash transaction

 

19 Share Capital, Share Premium and Dividends

Share capital
US$000

Share
Premium
US$000

Total
US$000

47,000 454,513 501,513

10,317 468,998 479,315

57,317 923,511 980,828
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

19 Share Capital, Share Premium and Dividends continued
Authorised share capital

Issued share capital

 

general meeting.

during 2014.

20 Trade and Other Payables

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

355 126,601

286 237

125 269

– 22

– 10,575

– 3,525

766 141,229

– (125)

Current portion 766 141,104
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21 Borrowings 

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

Non-current 

21,200 –

Current 

– 833,291

21,200 –

2014
%

2013
%

5.7 6.3

22 Contingencies
Operating environment 

 
 

 –
 –  

 –
 –
 –



36 Global Ports Investments PLC Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

22 Contingencies continued

Guarantees granted to subsidiaries

23 Related Party Transactions 

(i) Operating activities

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

19,239 135,812

6,733 3,826

25,972 139,638

 

4,188 4,298

 

5,565 604

 

144 444

 

396 413

24 66

420 479
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(ii) Acquisitions/disposals of subsidiaries/joint ventures

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

104,268 261

8,551 10

112,819 271

998,571 3

(iii) Key management personnel compensation

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

948 859

(iv) Directors’ remuneration

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

Fees 391 393

456 466

847 859

(v) Borrowings from related parties

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

833,291 –

184,750 229,397

(722,782) –

(165,064) –

5,565 604

 Interest repaid (114,560) –

– 603,290

21,200 833,291
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23 Related Party Transactions continued
(vi) Loans to related parties

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

69,585 40,611

17,525 70,285

 Loans repaid (12,428) (45,246)

(6,492) –

3,835 4,085

 Interest repaid (2,786) (767)

– 300

(2,541) 317

66,698 69,585

5,505 6,415

6,492 –

(8,551) –

 Loans repaid (675) (1,086)

354 213

 Interest repaid (118) (286)

(748) 249

2,259 5,505

75,090 47,026

6,492 –

 Loans netted off (6,492) –

(8,551) –

17,525 70,285

 Loans repaid (13,103) (46,332)

4,189 4,298

 Interest repaid (2,904) (1,053)

(3,289) 566

– 300

68,957 75,090

(vii) Prepayments and other receivables

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

– 7

6,474 9,826

Notes to the Financial Statements continued
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(viii) Other payables

2014
US$000

2013
US$000

125 22

– 10,575

(ix) Guarantees granted to subsidiaries
 

 

24 Events After the Balance Sheet Date
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Unaudited Selected Illustrative Combined Financial Metrics

 –
 –

 

 –

 –

 –  
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Unaudited Illustrative Combined Consolidated Income Statement for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Global Ports 
Group NCC Group

Illustrative 
adjustments Notes

Illustrative 
Combined

332 257 – 589

Cost of sales (137) (116) (32) (285)

(48) (38) (32) (118)

Gross profit 195 141 (32) 304

 
(46) (16) – (62)

(1) (1) – (2)

17 – – 17

Other gains/(losses) – net 3 5 – 8

169 130 (32) 266

 
(20) (66) (38) B (123)

 
149 64 (70) 143

(35) (26) 12 (49)

114 38 (58) 94

 
Attributable to:

114 47 (58) 104

– (9) – (9)

114 38 (58) 94

Adjusted EBITDA 198 163 – 361
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Unaudited Selected Illustrative Combined Financial Metrics continued

Consolidated Cost of Sales, Selling and Administrative Expenses for the Year Ended 31 December 2013 Are as Follows:

Global Ports  
Group

NCC  
Group

Illustrative 
adjustments Notes

Illustrative 
Combined

70 44 – 114

43 35 8 86

6 – 24 30

– 4 – 4

13 0 – 13

8 7 – 15

9 5 – 14

7 4 – 11

5 2 – 7

2 7 – 9

7 5 – 12

1 1 – 2

12 19 – 31

Total cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses 183 133 32 348

Russian ports 
as per GPI report

Contribution of 
NCC Group

Illustrative 
adjustments Notes

Illustrative 
Enlarged 

Russian Ports

Total revenue 371 255 0 626

Cost of sales, administrative, selling and marketing 
expenses

52 35 8 95

6 – 24 30

0 4 4

58 40 – 98

15 0 – 15

10 7 – 17

12 5 – 17

35 34 – 69

Total cost of sales, administrative, selling and marketing 
expenses 188 125 32 345

Adjusted EBITDA 241 169 0 410
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Notes to the Illustrative Combined Financial Metrics

Illustrative Adjustments to the Consolidated Income Statement:
 

 

 
 

B. Finance income/(costs) – net: 

(USD m)

NCC Group 
long-term loan 

to a related 
party of the  

Sellers

NCC Group 
short-term loan 

to the Sellers

Roll-back of 
losses related 

to swap

Additional 
borrowings of 

NCC Group Total

i ii iii

(32) – – – (32)

– – – (13) (13)

– – – (18) (18)

– – 26 – 26

– (1) – – (1)

Net effect (32) (1) 26 (31) (38)
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Notes to the Illustrative Combined Financial Metrics continued

Unaudited Illustrative Combined Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Global Ports  
Group

NCC  
Group

Illustrative 
adjustments Notes

Illustrative 
combined

Cash generated from operations 219 175 – 394

70 – – 70

(37) (26) 6 C (57)

Net cash from operating activities 252 149 6 407

 

(178) – – (178)

(63) (7) – (70)

1 – – 1

Loans granted to related parties (20) (18) – (38)

1 – – 1

1 1 – 2

Net cash used in investing activities (258) (24) – (282)

 

283 538 – 821

(55) (580) – (635)

(18) – – (18)

Interest paid (15) (65) (13) (93)

(1) – – (1)

(150) (3) – (153)

44 (111) (13) (79)

 
Net increase in cash and bank overdrafts 38 15 (7) 46

 
78 37 – 115 

(3) – – (3)

Cash and bank overdrafts at end of the period 113 52 (7) 158
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Definitions and Presentation of Information

Definitions 

Adjusted EBITDA 

Adjusted EBITDA Margin

Average Storage Capacity 

Baltic Sea Basin  

Container Throughput in the Russian Federation Ports 

Cash Costs of Sales 

Cash Administrative, Selling and Marketing expenses 

CD Holding group 

Far East Basin 

First Container Terminal (FCT) 
 

Finnish Ports segment 

Fuel Oil Export Market 

Functional Currency 
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Definitions and Presentation of Information continued

Definitions continued
Gross Container Throughput 

Logistika Terminal (LT)  
 

MLT Group 
 

Moby Dik (MD)  
 

Net Debt 

Oil Products Terminal segment 
 

Operating Cash Costs of Russian Ports 

Operating Cash Costs of Oil Products Terminal segment 

Operating Cash Costs of Finnish Ports 

Petrolesport (PLP) 

Ro-Ro, roll on-roll off  

Russian container market

Russian Ports segment 
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TEU  

Total Operating Cash Costs

Transaction 

Ust-Luga Container Terminal (ULCT) 

Vopak EOS 
 

Vostochnaya Stevedoring Company (VSC) 

Weighted average effective interest rate 

Yanino Logistics Park (YLP) 
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Global Ports Investments Plc

Legal Address
Omirou 20 

 
 

Limassol, Cyprus

Postal Address
 

 
Germasogeia 
Limassol P.C. 4046, Cyprus

Investor Relations
 

 
 
 

Media Relations
Russian Media 

 
 
 

International Media 
 

 
 

Depositary
 

 
 
 

Stock Exchange
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